VENDOR NO:	CONTRACT (PO) NO:		
	SPECIFICATION NO.: 92221A		
Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon			
CONTRACT PERIOD: SIXTY (60) MONTHS			
STARTING:	THROUGH:		

REQUIRED FOR USE BY CITY OF CHICAGO



Department of Water Management

Fund Number: 010-0200-088-2020-0342-W705-220342 (And various)

Information: Toyla Rice, Contract Administrator

Phone: (312) 744-1681, Fax: (312) 744-7679, E-mail: toyla.rice@cityofchicago.org

EXECUTE AND SUBMIT ONE (1) COMPLETE ORIGINAL BID PACKAGE

All signatures to be sworn to before a Notary Public

Bid must be sealed, delivered and received in the City of Chicago, Department of Procurement Services, Bid and Bond Room, City Hall, Room 301, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois, 60602 NO LATER than 11:00 a.m., Chicago Time on Wednesday, August 31, 2011. Bids will be read publicly. Bid package must be complete and returned in its entirety.

Issued by:

City of Chicago
Department of Procurement Services

Commodities Unit Room 403, City Hall 121 North LaSalle Street Chicago, Illinois 60602

Bid must be submitted in sealed envelope(s) or packages(s). The outside of the envelope or package must clearly indicate the name of the project, "Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon" the specification number "92221A" and the time and the date specified for receipt. The name and the address of the Bidder must also be clearly printed on the outside of the envelope(s) or package(s). Respondent must NOT scan or otherwise reproduce this document in any way.

Rahm Emanuel Mayor

Jamie L. Rhee Chief Procurement Officer

Table of Contents

1.	DEFINITIONS	1
2.	GENERAL CONDITIONS	3
	2.1. DOWNLOADABLE DOCUMENT	3
	2.2. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	
	2.3. EXAMINATION BY BIDDER	
	2.4. PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL	3
	2.5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS	
	2.6. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS	4
	2.7. COMPETENCY OF BIDDER	
	2.8. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS	
	2.9. ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSALS	5
	2.10. TAXES	
	2.11. CONTRACTOR'S FINANCIAL STATEMENT	
	2.12. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE OF COMPONENT CONTRACT PARTS	
	2.13. NOTICES	
	2.14. NON-DISCRIMINATION	
	2.15. INDEMNITY	
	2.16. LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE	7
	2.17. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT OR CONTRACT FUNDS	
	2.18. SUBCONTRACTORS	8
	2.20. SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENTS	
	2.22. MATERIALS INSPECTION AND RESPONSIBILITY	9
	2.23. CASH BILLING DISCOUNT	
	2.24. AUDITS	
	2.25. PRICE REDUCTION	
	2.26. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN CONTRIBUTIONS – MAYORAL EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 11-4	
	2.27. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	
	2.28. GOVERNMENTAL ETHICS ORDINANCE	11
	2.29. DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP	
	2.30. DISCLOSURE OF RETAINED PARTIES - EXECUTIVE ORDER 97-1	
	2.31. INSPECTOR GENERAL AND LEGISLATIVE INSPECTOR GENERAL	
	2.32. SECTION 2-92-380 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO	12
	2.33. SECTION 11-4-1600(E) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO	12
	2.34. BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED OFFICIALS	13
	2.35. MACBRIDE PRINCIPLES ORDINANCE	
	2.36. CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION	
	2.37. COMPLIANCE WITH CHILD SUPPORT ORDERS ORDINANCE	
	2.38. NON-COLLUSION, BRIBERY OF A PUBLIC OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE	
	2.39. FEDERAL TERRORIST (NO-BUSINESS) LIST	
	2.40. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS	
	2.41. COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS	
	2.42. SEVERABILITY	
	2.43. FALSE STATEMENTS	
	2.44. REGARDING BUSINESS ENTERPRISES OWNED BY PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES COMMITTMENT	
	2.45. OFFICE OF COMPLIANCE	
	2.46. SHAKMAN ACCORD	
	2.48. DISPUTES	
2	SPECIAL CONDITIONS	
٥.		
	3.1. PERFORMANCE BOND	
	3.2. BID DEPOSIT	25

3.3. QUANTITIES	
3.4. BASIS OF AWARD	25
3.5. SAMPLES	25
3.6. CHICAGO BUSINESS PREFERENCE	26
3.7. MINORITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISES	26
3.8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS TO BE COMPLETED BY BIDDER	
3.9. CONTRACT PERIOD	
3.10. CONTRACT EXTENSION OPTION	
3.11. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS	
3.12. UNSPECIFIED ITEMS	
3.13. PARTICIPATION BY OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES	
3.14. PURCHASE ORDER BLANKET RELEASES	
3.15. DELIVERY	
3.16. INSPECTION UPON DELIVERY	
3.17. INVOICES	
3.18. ELECTRONIC ORDERING AND INVOICES	
3.19. PAYMENT	
3.20. PRICE ESCALATION	
3.21. Department of Water Management Security	
3.22. ACCEPTANCE	
3.23. DEEMED INCLUSION	
3.24. NON-APPROPRIATION	
3.25. CONFIDENTIALITY	
3.26. TERMINATION	
3.27. CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE	35
3.28. INSURANCE CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE	37
4. DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS	38
4.1. SCOPE	38
4.2. INTENT	
4.3. AUTHORIZED DEALER / DISTRIBUTOR	
4.4. LIGNITE COAL BASED POWDERED ACTIVATED CARBON	00
4.5. TESTING/SAMPLES	ەد
4.6. REJECTION	
4.7. REJECTION OF REJECTED MATERIAL	40
4.7. DISOSITION OF REJECTED MATERIAL	40
4.8. INVENTORY/LEAD TIME	
4.9. STANDARD LIGNITE COAL BASED POWDERED ACTIVATED CARBON	
4.10. BACK ORDERS	
4.11. MISSHIPMENTS/DEFECTIVE MERCHANDISE	
4.12. EXCEPTIONS	41
5. FMPS PROPOSAL PAGES	42
5. ADDITIONAL PROPOSAL INFORMATION	43
C.4. Davison To Contact Degayding This Did	40
6.1. Person To Contact Regarding This Bid	
6.2. Manufacturer, Manufactuer's Distributor/Service Representative	
6.3. LOCATION OF FACILITY WHERE INVENTORY IS MAINTAINED:	
6.4. COMMENTS (EXPLAIN):	43
7. AFFIDAVIT OF CHICAGO BUSINESS	44
3. CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT (EDS)	45
8.1. Online EDS Filing Required Prior To Bid Opening	15
8.2. Online EDS Web Link	
8.3. Online EDS Number	
8.4. Online EDS Certification of Filing	
8.5. Preparation Checklist For Registration	
8.6. Preparation Checklist For EDS Submission	
8.7. EDS Frequently Asked Questions	47

9. PROPOSAL Execution Pages	51
9.1. Proposal to be Executed by a Corporation	
9.2. Proposal To Be Executed By A Joint Venture	
9.3. Proposal to be Executed by a Partnership	
9.4. Proposal to be Executed by a Sole Proprietor	
9.5. Proposal Acceptance by City	55

1. DEFINITIONS

"Department"

Wherever applicable in the Contract Documents, the following terms, or pronouns in place of them, or abbreviations, are used, the interpretation and meaning shall be interpreted as follows:

"Attachments"	means all exhibits attached hereto and/or incorporated by reference herein;	
"Business Day"	means business days (Monday through Friday, excluding Holidays) in accordance with the City of Chicago business calendar;	
"Calendar Day"	means calendar days (Sunday through Saturday) in accordance with the world-wide accepted calendar;	
"Chief		
Procurement Officer"	refers to the Chief Executive of the Department of Procurement Services, for the City of Chicago, and any representative duly authorized in writing to act on the Chief Procurement Officer's behalf;	
"City"	refers to the City of Chicago, a municipal corporation and home rule government under Sections 1 and 6(a), Article VII, of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois;	
"Commissioner"	refers to the Chief Executive of the Department of Water Management, for the City of Chicago, and any representative duly authorized in writing to act on the Commissioner's behalf;	
"Contact Person"	refers to Contractor's management level personnel who will work as liaison between the City and the Contractor and be available to respond to any problems that may arise at a work site;	
"Contract"	means this Contract for Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, including all exhibits attached hereto and/or incorporated by reference herein, and all amendments, modifications, or revisions made from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof;	
"Contractor"	refers to the person, firm, entity or corporation who is awarded this Contract;	
"Contract Documents"	are herein as incorporated into the Contract before its execution, and all as may be amended, modified, revised in accordance with the terms hereof;	
"Deliverables"	means any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, documents, reports, information, etc. to be provided by the Contractor to the City;	
"Delivery Location"	refers to the location where the product or service is to be provided by the Contractor;	

means the Department of Water Management, City of Chicago;

"Holidays"

means the following days in accordance with the City of Chicago; New Year's Day, Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday, Lincoln's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Pulaski Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day;

"Proposal"

as used herein refers to the Contractor prepared document quoting a firm fixed price or unit price for performance of the Work, including all Contractor schedules and signatory documents required to be completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents;

"Reporting Formats"

means the appearance in which a report is submitted by the Contractor to the City;

"Services"

means all work to be performed by the Contractor hereunder, including provision of all labor materials, equipment, supplies and other incidentals necessary or convenient to the successful completion of the work;

"Subcontractor"

means any person or entity with whom the Contractor contracts to provide any part of the Work, including Subcontractors of any tier, suppliers and material men, whether or not in privity with the Contractor;

Unless a contrary meaning is specifically noted elsewhere, words as required, as directed, as permitted, and similar words mean that requirements, directions of, and permission of the Commissioner or Chief Procurement Officer are intended; similarly the words approved, acceptable, satisfactory, or words of like imports, will mean approved by, acceptable to, or satisfactory to the Commissioner or Chief Procurement Officer. The words necessary, proper, or words of like import as used with respect to extent of Work specified will mean that Work must be conducted in a manner, or be of character which is necessary or proper in the opinion of the Commissioner. The Commissioner's judgment in such matters will be considered final and incontestable by the Contractor.

Wherever the imperative form of address is used, such as provide equipment required it will be understood and agreed that such address is directed to the Contractor.

2. GENERAL CONDITIONS

Sealed bids will be received by the Chief Procurement Officer of the City of Chicago in accordance with Contract Documents as set forth herein.

2.1. DOWNLOADABLE DOCUMENT

Bidder that downloads a bid solicitation from the City of Chicago's website: www.cityofchicago.org/procurement, instead of obtaining the hard copy bid solicitation from the City of Chicago's Bid and Bond Room, is responsible for checking the City of Chicago's website for clarifications and/or addenda. Failure to obtain clarifications and/or addenda from the City's website will not relieve the bidder from being bound by any additional terms and/or conditions in the clarification and/or addenda. The City will not be responsible for bidder's failure to consider additional information contained therein in preparing the bid or proposal.

Note: Multiple clarifications and/or addenda may be issued which the bidder is responsible for obtaining.

If the bid solicitation was downloaded from the City of Chicago's website instead of picking up a hard copy from the City of Chicago's Bid and Bond Room, the bidder MUST contact the City of Chicago, Department of Procurement Services, Bid and Bond Room at (312) 744-9773 or by faxing a copy of a business card (include e-mail address, Specification No and RFQ No) at (312) 744-5611 to register your company as a document holder for this bid solicitation.

Any harm to the bidder resulting from such failure to obtain all necessary documents will not be valid grounds for a protest against award(s) made under this bid solicitation.

2.2. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

If any person contemplating submitting a proposal is in doubt as to the true meaning of any part of the specifications or other Contract documents, a written request for an interpretation thereof, may be submitted to the Chief Procurement Officer prior to the bid opening date. The person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery. Any interpretation of the proposed documents will be made only by an addendum duly issued by the Chief Procurement Officer. A copy of such addendum will be faxed, electronically mailed, mailed or delivered to each person receiving a set of such Contract documents and to such other prospective bidders as will have requested that they be furnished with a copy of each addendum. Failure on the part of the prospective bidder to receive a written interpretation prior to the time of the opening of bids will not be grounds for withdrawal of proposal. Bidder must acknowledge receipt of each addendum issued in the space provided on the appropriate Proposal Execution Page. Oral explanations will not be binding.

2.3. EXAMINATION BY BIDDER

The bidder must, before submitting its bid, carefully examine the proposal, plans, specifications, Contract documents and bonds. The bidder must inspect in detail the site of the proposed work and familiarize itself with all the local conditions affecting the Contract and the detailed requirements of construction. If its bid is accepted, the bidder will be responsible for all errors in its proposal resulting from failure or neglect to comply with these instructions. The City will, in no case, be responsible for any change in anticipated profits resulting from such failure or neglect.

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract, when the plans or specifications include information pertaining to subsurface exploration, borings, test pits, and other preliminary investigation, such information represents only the opinion of the City as to the location, character, or quantity of the materials encountered and is only included for the convenience of the bidder. The City assumes no responsibility with respect to the sufficiency or accuracy of the information, and there is no guaranty, either expressed or implied, that the conditions indicated are representative of those existing throughout the work, or that unanticipated developments may not occur.

2.4. PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL

Bidder must prepare its proposal on the attached Proposal Page(s). Unless otherwise stated, all blank spaces on the proposal page or pages, applicable to the subject specification, must be correctly filled in. Either a unit price or a lump sum price, as the case may be, must be stated for each and every item, either typed in or written in ink, in figures, and, if required, in words.

If bidder is a corporation, the President and Secretary must execute the bid and the Corporate seal must be affixed. In the event that this bid is executed by other than the President, attach hereto a certified copy of that section of Corporate By-Laws or other authorization by the Corporation that permits the person to execute the offer for the corporation.

If bidder is a partnership, all partners must execute the bid, unless one partner has been authorized to sign for the partnership, in which case, evidence of such authority satisfactory to the Chief Procurement Officer must be submitted.

If bidder is a sole proprietorship, the sole proprietorship must execute the bid.

A "Partnership", "Joint Venture" or "Sole Proprietorship" operating under an Assumed Name must be registered with the Illinois county in which located, as provided in 805 ILCS 405 (1992).

2.5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

All prospective bidders must submit sealed proposals with applicable bid deposit enclosed in envelopes provided for that purpose to the DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES, Room 301, City Hall, and if proposals are submitted in envelopes other than those so provided for this purpose, then the sealed envelope submitted by the prospective bidder must carry the following information on the face of the envelope: bidders name, address, subject matter of proposal, advertised date of bid opening and the hour designated for bid opening as shown on the legal advertisement.

Where proposals are sent by mail to the Chief Procurement Officer, the bidders are responsible for their delivery to the Chief Procurement Officer before the advertised date and hour for the opening of bids. If the mail is delayed beyond the date and hour set for the bid opening, proposals thus delayed will not be accepted.

Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided on the appropriate Proposal Execution Page. Proposals not properly signed and notarized will be rejected.

2.6. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS

Bidders may withdraw their proposals at any time prior to the time specified in the advertisement as the closing time for the receipt of bids. However, no bidder will withdraw or cancel his proposal for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after said advertised closing time for the receipt of proposals nor must the successful bidder withdraw or cancel or modify its proposal after having been notified by the Chief Procurement Officer that said proposal has been accepted by the City. The City reserves the right to withhold and deposit, as liquidated damages and not a penalty, the bid deposit of any bidder requesting withdrawal, cancellation or modification of its proposal prior to the stated period for acceptance of proposal.

Where this Contract will be approved by another agency, such as the Federal Government or State of Illinois, then the bidder will not withdraw or cancel or modify its proposal for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after said advertised closing time for the receipt of proposals.

2.7. COMPETENCY OF BIDDER

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to refuse to award a Contract to any person, firm or corporation that is in arrears or is in default to the City of Chicago upon any debt or Contract, or that is a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to said City, or had failed to perform faithfully any previous Contract with the City.

The bidder, if requested, must present within a reasonable time, as determined by the Chief Procurement Officer, evidence satisfactory to the Chief Procurement Officer of performance ability and possession of necessary facilities, pecuniary resources and adequate insurance to comply with the terms of these specifications and Contract documents.

2.8. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS

The Chief Procurement Officer will represent and act for the City in all matters pertaining to this proposal and Contract in conjunction therewith. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to disregard any informality in the bids and bidding, when in his opinion the best interest of the City will be served by such action.

The proposal is contained in these Contract documents and MUST NOT BE DETACHED HERE FROM by any bidder when submitting a proposal. Incomplete proposals are subject to rejection.

2.9. ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSALS

The Chief Procurement Officer will accept in writing one (1) or more of the proposals, if Basis of Award in Special Conditions allows for multiple awards and/or reject any/all proposals, within sixty (60) calendar days, or within ninety (90) calendar days where approval by other agencies is required, from the date of opening of bids, unless the lowest responsible bidder, upon request of the City, extends the time of acceptance to the City.

2.10. TAXES

Federal Excise Tax does not apply to materials purchased by the City of Chicago by virtue of Exemption Certificate No. 36-6005820 and State of Illinois Sales Tax does not apply by virtue of Exemption No. E9998-1874-09 Illinois Retailers' Occupation Tax, Use Tax, and Municipal Retailers Occupation Tax do not apply to materials or services purchased by the City of Chicago by virtue of Statute.

The price or prices quoted herein shall include all other Federal and/or State, direct and/or indirect taxes which apply. The prices quoted herein shall agree with all Federal laws and regulations.

2.11. CONTRACTOR'S FINANCIAL STATEMENT

If requested by the Chief Procurement Officer the bidder will file with the office of the Chief Procurement Officer a CONTRACTOR'S STATEMENT OF EXPERIENCE AND FINANCIAL CONDITION dated not earlier than the end of the Contractors last fiscal year period. The Contractor's Statement of Experience and Financial Condition will be kept on file by the Chief Procurement Officer as a representative statement for a period of one (1) year. The Contractor's Statement of Experience and Financial Condition forms are available at the office of the Bid and Bond Section, DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES, Room 301 City Hall, or may be obtained by addressing a request to the Chief Procurement Officer, Room 403, City Hall, Chicago, Illinois, 60602. Failure to have a current Contractor's Statement of Experience and Financial Condition form on file with the DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES may be cause for the rejection of Contractor's Proposal.

2.12. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE OF COMPONENT CONTRACT PARTS

The order of precedence of the component Contract parts will be as follows:

- 1. Advertisement for proposals (copy of advertisement to be attached to back of cover).
- 2. Addenda, if any.
- 3. General Conditions.
- 4. Special Conditions.
- 5. Detailed Specifications.
- 6. Plans or City Drawings, if any.
- 7. Standard Specifications of the City, State, or Federal Government, if any.
- 8. Performance Bond, if required.

The foregoing order of precedence will govern the interpretation of the Contract in all cases of conflict or inconsistency therein, except as may be otherwise expressly provided by the City.

2.13. NOTICES

All communications and notices herein provided for shall be faxed, delivered personally, electronically mailed, or mailed first class, postage prepaid, to the Contractor by name and address listed on the proposal hereof to the Commissioner of the using department, and to the Chief Procurement Officer, Room 403, City Hall, 121 N. La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602.

2.14. NON-DISCRIMINATION

A. Federal Requirements

It is an unlawful employment practice for the Contractor (1) to fail or refuse to hire or to discharge any individual, or otherwise to discriminate against any individual with respect to his compensation, or the terms, conditions, or privileges of his employment, because of such individuals race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin; or (2) to limit, segregate, or classify his employees or applicants for employment in any way which would deprive or tend to deprive any individual of employment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect his status as an employee, because of such individuals race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin.

Contractor must comply with The Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. sec. 2000 et seq. (1988), as amended. Attention is called to: Exec. Order No. 11,246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12,319 (1965), reprinted in 42 U.S.C. 2000(e) note, as amended by Exec. Order No. 11,375, 32 Fed. Reg. 14,303 (1967) and by Exec. Order No. 12,086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46,501 (1978); Age Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. sec. 6101-6106 (1988); Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. sec. 793-794 (1988); Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. sec. 12102 et seq.; and 41 C.F.R. Part 60 et seq. (1990); and all other applicable federal laws, rules, regulations and executive orders.

B. State Requirements

Contractor must comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1 - 101 et seq. (1992), as amended and any rules and regulations promulgated in accordance therewith, including, but not limited to the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause, 44 Ill. Admin. Code '750 Appendix A. Furthermore, the Contractor must comply with the Public Works Employment Discrimination Act, 775 ILCS 10/0.01 et seq. (1992), as amended; and all other applicable state laws, rules, regulations and executive orders.

C. City Requirements

Contractor must comply with the Chicago Human Rights Ordinance, Ch. 2-160, Section 2-160-010 et seq. of the Chicago Municipal Code (1990), as amended; and all other applicable municipal code provisions, rules, regulations and executive orders. Further, Contractor must furnish or shall cause each of its Subcontractor(s) to furnish such reports and information as requested by the Chicago Commission on Human Relations.

2.15. INDEMNITY

Contractor must defend, indemnify, keep and hold harmless the City, its officers, representatives, elected and appointed officials, agents and employees from and against any and all losses, including those related to:

injury, death or damage of or to any person or property;

any infringement or violation of any property right (including any patent, trademark or copyright);

Contractor's failure to perform or cause to be performed Contractor's covenants and obligations as and when required under this Contract, including Contractor's failure to perform its obligations to any Subcontractor;

the City's exercise of its rights and remedies under this Contract; and

injuries to or death of any employee of Contractor or any Subcontractor under any workers compensation statute;

"Losses" means, individually and collectively, liabilities of every kind, including Losses, damages and reasonable costs, payments and expenses (such as, but not limited to, court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements), claims, demands, actions, suits, proceedings, judgments or settlements, any or all of which in any way arise out of or

relate to Contractor's breach of this Contract or to Contractor's negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions or those of its officers, agents, employees, consultants, Subcontractors or licensees.

At the City Corporation Counsels option, Contractor must defend all suits brought upon all such Losses and must pay all costs and expenses incidental to them, but the City has the right, at its option, to participate, at its own cost, in the defense of any suit, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations under this Contract. Any settlement must be made only with the prior written consent of the City Corporation Counsel, if the settlement requires any action on the part of the City.

To the extent permissible by law, Contractor waives any limits to the amount of its obligation to indemnify, defend or contribute to any sums due under any Losses, including any claim by any employee of Contractor that may be subject to the Workers Compensation Act, 820ILCS305/1 et seq. or any other related law or judicial decision (such as, Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corporation, 146 Ill. 2nd 155 (1991). The City, however, does not waive any limitations it may have on its liability under the Illinois Workers Compensation Act, the Illinois Pension Code or any other statute or judicial decision.

The indemnities in this section survive expiration or termination of this Contract for matters occurring or arising during the term of this Contract or as the result of or during the Contractor's performance of service beyond the term. Contractor acknowledges that the requirements set forth in this section to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the City are apart from and not limited by the Contactor's duties under this Contract, including the insurance requirements set forth in the Contract.

2.16. LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE

Section 2-92-610 of the Municipal Code of Chicago provides for a living wage for certain categories of workers employed in the performance of City contracts, specifically non-City employed security guards, parking attendants, day laborers, home and health care workers, cashiers, elevator operators, custodial workers, and clerical workers ("Covered Employees"). Accordingly, pursuant to Section 2-92-610 and regulations promulgated thereunder:

if the Contractor has twenty-five (25) or more full-time employees, and

if at any time during the performance of the contract the Contractor and/or any subcontractor or any other entity that provides any portion of the Services (collectively "Performing Parties") uses twenty-five (25) or more full-time security guards, or any number of other full-time Covered Employees, then

the Contractor must pay its Covered Employees, and must assure that all other Performing Parties pay their Covered Employees, not less than the minimum hourly rate as determined in accordance with this provision (the "Base Wage") for all work performed pursuant to the Contract.

The Contractor's obligation to pay, and to assure payment of, the Base Wage will begin at any time during the Contract term when the conditions set forth in A.1 and A.2 above are met, and will continue thereafter until the end of the Contract term.

The current Base Wage is \$11.03. Each July 1st thereafter, the Base Wage will be adjusted, using the most recent federal poverty guidelines for a family of four (4) as published annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, to constitute the following: the poverty guidelines for a family of four (4) divided by two thousand (2000) hours or the current base wage, whichever is higher. At all times during the term of this Contract, Contractor and all other Performing Parties must pay the Base Wage (as adjusted in accordance with the above). If the payment of prevailing wages is required for work or services done under this Contract, and the prevailing wages for Covered Employees are higher than the Base Wage, then the Contractor must pay the prevailing wage rates.

The Contractor must include provisions in all subcontracts requiring its subcontractors to pay the Base Wage to Covered Employees. The Contractor agrees to provide the City with documentation acceptable to the Chief Procurement Officer demonstrating that all Covered Employees, whether employed by the Contractor or by a Subcontractor, have been paid the Base Wage, upon the City's request for such documentation. The City may independently audit the Contractor and/or Subcontractors to verify compliance herewith. Failure to comply with the requirements of this Section will be an event of default under this Contract, and further, failure to comply may result in ineligibility for any award of a City Contract or subcontract for up to three (3) years.

Not-for-Profit Corporations: If the Contractor is a corporation having Federal tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is recognized under Illinois not-for-profit law, then the provisions of Section A through D above do not apply.

2.17. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT OR CONTRACT FUNDS

No contract will be assigned or any part of the same sub-contracted without the written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer; but in no case will such consent relieve the Contractor from his obligations, or change the terms of the Contract.

The Contractor must not transfer or assign any Contract funds or claims due or to become due without the written approval of the Chief Procurement Officer having first been obtained.

The transfer or assignment of any Contract funds either in whole or in part, or any interest therein, which will be due or to become due to the Contractor, will cause the annulment of said transfer or assignment so far as the City is concerned.

2.18. SUBCONTRACTORS

The Contractor must notify the Chief Procurement Officer, in writing, of the names of all Subcontractors to be used and will not employ any that the Chief Procurement Officer may object to.

The Contractor will not subcontract any portion of the services or work to be performed hereunder without the prior written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer. The Subcontracting of the services or work or any portion thereof without the prior written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer will be null and void. The Contractor will not make any substitution of a Subcontractor without the written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer. The substitution of a Subcontractor without the prior written consent of the Chief Procurement Officer will be null and void. The Chief Procurement Officer's consent will not relieve the Contractor from any of its obligations under the Contract.

The Contractor will subcontract with only competent and responsible Subcontractors. If, in the judgment of the Commissioner or the Chief Procurement Officer, any Subcontractor is careless, incompetent, violates safety or security rules, obstructs the progress of the services, acts contrary to instructions, acts improperly, is not responsible, is unfit, violates any laws applicable to this Contract, or fails to follow the requirements of this Contract, then the Contractor will, immediately upon notice from the Commissioner or the Chief Procurement Officer, discharge or otherwise remove such Subcontractor.

2.19. SUBCONTRACTORS WITH DISABILITIES

The City encourages Contractors to use Subcontractors that are firms owned or operated by individuals with disabilities, as defined by Section 2-92-586 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, where not otherwise prohibited by federal or state law.

2.20. SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENTS

Contractor must submit a status report of Subcontractor payments with each invoice for the duration of the Contract on the "Subcontractor Payment Certification" form required by the City. The form can be downloaded from the City's website at:

http://egov.cityofchicago.org/webportal/COCWebPortal/COC_EDITORIAL/subcompliance.pdf. The statement must list the following for Contractor and for each Subcontractor and supplier for the period for which payment is requested:

- (i) Total amount invoiced by the Contractor for the prior month;
- (ii) The name of each particular Subcontractor or supplier utilized during the prior month;
- (iii) Indication if the Subcontractor or supplier is acting as an MBE, WBE, DBE, or non-certified firm on this Contract:
- (iv) The vendor/supplier number of each Subcontractor or supplier;
- (v) Total amount invoiced that is to be paid to each Subcontractor or supplier.

If a Subcontractor has satisfactorily completed its Work, or provided specified materials in accordance with the requirements of the Contract, Contractor must pay Subcontractor for such work or materials within fourteen (14) calendar days of Contractor receiving payment from the City.

2.21. DEMURRAGE AND RE-SPOTTING

The City will be responsible for demurrage charges only when such charges accrue because of the City's negligence in unloading the material.

The City will pay railroad charges due to the re-spotting of cars, only when such re-spotting is ordered by the City.

2.22. MATERIALS INSPECTION AND RESPONSIBILITY

The City, by its Chief Procurement Officer, will have a right to inspect any materials to be used in carrying out this Contract.

The City does not assume any responsibility for the availability of any controlled materials or other materials and equipment required under this Contract.

The Contractor will be responsible for the contracted quality and standards of all materials, components or completed work furnished under this Contract up to the time of final acceptance by the City.

Materials, components or completed work not complying therewith may be rejected by the Chief Procurement Officer and must be replaced by the Contractor at no cost to the City.

Any materials or components rejected must be removed within a reasonable time from the premises of the City at the entire expense of the Contractor, after written notice has been mailed by the City to the Contractor that such materials or components have been rejected.

2.23. CASH BILLING DISCOUNT

Any cash billing discounts offered will not be considered in the evaluation of bids.

2.24. AUDITS

The City may in its sole discretion audit the records of Contractor or its Subcontractors, or both, at any time during the term of this Contract or within five (5) years after the Contract ends, in connection with the goods, work, or services provided under this Contract. Each calendar year or partial calendar year is considered an "audited period". If, as a result of such an audit, it is determined that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in the audited period, the City will notify Contractor. Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any amounts the City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges and also some or all of the cost of the audit, as follows:

If the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing less than five percent (5%) of the total value, based on the Contract prices, of the goods, work, or services provided in the audited period, then the Contractor must reimburse the City for fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the audit and fifty percent (50%) of the cost of each subsequent audit that the City conducts;

If, however, the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing five percent (5%) or more of the total value, based on the Contract prices, of the goods, work, or services provided in the audited period, then Contractor must reimburse the City for the full cost of the audit and of each subsequent audit.

Failure of Contractor to reimburse the City in accordance with A or B above is an event of default under this Contract, and Contractor will be liable for all of the City's costs of collection, including any court costs and attorney's fees.

2.25. PRICE REDUCTION

If at any time after the date of the bid or offer the Contractor makes a general price reduction in the comparable price of any material covered by the Contract to customers generally, an equivalent price reduction based on similar quantities

and/or considerations shall apply to the Contract for the duration of the Contract period (or until the price is further reduced). Such price reduction will be effective at the same time and in the same manner as the reduction in the price to customers generally. For purpose of this provision, a general price reduction will mean any horizontal reduction in the price of an article or service offered (1) to Contractors customers generally, or (2) in the Contractor's price schedule for the class of customers, i.e., wholesalers, jobbers, retailers, etc., which was used as the basis for bidding on this Contract. An occasional sale at a lower price, or sale of distressed merchandise at a lower price, would not be considered a general price reduction under this provision. The Contractor must invoice the ordering offices at such reduced prices indicating on the invoice that the reduction is pursuant to the Price Reduction provision of the Contract documents. The Contractor, in addition, must within ten (10) calendar days of any general price reduction notify the Chief Procurement Officer of the City of Chicago of such reduction by letter. Failure to do so may require termination of the Contract. Upon receipt of any such notice of a general price reduction all ordering offices will be duly notified by the Chief Procurement Officer.

The Contractor must furnish, within ten (10) calendar days after the end of the Contract period, a statement certifying either:

that no general price reduction, as defined above, was made after the date of the bid or offer; or

2. if any such general price reductions were made, that is provided above, they were reported to the Chief Procurement Officer within ten (10) calendar days, and ordering offices were billed at the reduced prices.

Where one (1) or more such general price reductions were made, the statement furnished by the Contractor must include with respect to each price reduction:

the date when notice of any such reduction was issued;

the effective date of the reduction; and

3. the date when the Chief Procurement Officer was notified of any such reduction.

2.26. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN CONTRIBUTIONS - MAYORAL EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 11-4

Contractor agrees that Contractor, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest in Contractor of more than 7.5 percent ("Owners"), spouses and domestic partners of such Owners, Contractor's Subcontractors, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest in any Subcontractor of more than 7.5 percent ("Sub-owners") and spouses and domestic partners of such Sub-owners (Contractor and all the other preceding classes of persons and entities are together, the "Identified Parties"), shall not make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor of the City of Chicago (the "Mayor") or to his political fundraising committee (i) after execution of this bid, proposal or Agreement by Contractor, (ii) while this Agreement or any Other Contract between Contractor and the City, or (iv) during any period while an extension of this Agreement or any Other Contract is being sought or negotiated.

Contractor represents and warrants that since the date of public advertisement of the specification, request for qualifications, request for proposals or request for information (or any combination of those requests) or, if not competitively procured, from the date the City approached the Contractor or the date the Contractor approached the City, as applicable, regarding the formulation of this Agreement, no Identified Parties have made a contribution of any amount to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Contractor agrees that it shall not: (a) coerce, compel or intimidate its employees to make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political fundraising committee; (b) reimburse its employees for a contribution of any amount made to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political fundraising committee; or (c) bundle or solicit others to bundle contributions to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Contractor agrees that the Identified Parties must not engage in any conduct whatsoever designed to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 11-4 or to entice, direct or solicit others to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 11-4.

Contractor agrees that a violation of, non-compliance with, misrepresentation with respect to, or breach of any covenant or warranty under this provision or violation of Mayoral Executive Order No. 11-4 constitutes a breach and default under this Agreement, and under any Other Contract for which no opportunity to cure will be granted. Such breach and default

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 10 of 55

entitles the City to all remedies (including without limitation termination for default) under this Agreement, under Other Contract, at law and in equity. This provision amends any Other Contract and supersedes any inconsistent provision contained therein.

If Contractor violates this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 11-4 prior to award of the Agreement resulting from this specification, the Chief Procurement Officer may reject Contractor's bid.

For purposes of this provision:

"Bundle" means to collect contributions from more than one source which are then delivered by one person to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

"Other Contract" means any other agreement with the City of Chicago to which Contractor is a party that is (i) formed under the authority of chapter 2-92 of the Municipal Code of Chicago; (ii) entered into for the purchase or lease of real or personal property; or (iii) for materials, supplies, equipment or services which are approved or authorized by the city council.

"Contribution" means a "political contribution" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, as amended.

Individuals are "Domestic Partners" if they satisfy the following criteria:

- A. they are each other's sole domestic partner, responsible for each other's common welfare; and
- B. neither party is married; and
- C. the partners are not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the State of Illinois; and
- D. each partner is at least 18 years of age, and the partners are the same sex, and the partners reside at the same residence: and
- E. two of the following four conditions exist for the partners:
 - The partners have been residing together for at least 12 months.
 The partners have common or joint ownership of a residence.

 - 3. The partners have at least two of the following arrangements:
 - a. joint ownership of a motor vehicle;
 - b. a joint credit account;
 - c. a joint checking account;
 - d. a lease for a residence identifying both domestic partners as tenants.
 - 4. Each partner identifies the other partner as a primary beneficiary in a will.

"Political fundraising committee" means a "political fundraising committee" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, as amended.

2.27. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

No member of the governing body of the City of Chicago or other unit of government and no other officer, employee or agent of the City of Chicago or other unit of government who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the carrying out of the project will have any personal or financial interests, direct or indirect, in the Contract.

The Contractor covenants that he presently has no interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in the project to which the Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its work hereunder. The Contractor further covenants that in its performance of the Contract no person having any such interest will be employed.

2.28. GOVERNMENTAL ETHICS ORDINANCE

Contractor must comply with Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, "Governmental Ethics", including but not limited to Section 2-156-120 of this Chapter pursuant to which no payment, gratuity or offer of employment will be made in connection with any City contract, by or on behalf of a subcontractor to the prime Contractor or higher tier subcontractor or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Any contract negotiated, entered into, or performed in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter will be voidable as to the City.

2.29. DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP

Pursuant to Chapter 2-154 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, any person, business entity or agency submitting a bid or proposal to or contracting with the City of Chicago will be required to complete the Disclosure of Ownership Interests in the attached Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit. Failure to provide complete or accurate disclosure will render this Agreement voidable.

2.30. DISCLOSURE OF RETAINED PARTIES - EXECUTIVE ORDER 97-1

Bidder will be required to execute the Disclosure of Retained Parties Section of the Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit as required by Executive Order 97-1. Refusal to execute the Disclosure of Retained Parties Section of the Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit will result in the Chief Procurement Officer declaring the bidder non-responsible. Moreover, if a bidder is deemed non-responsible under this provision, the bidder's status as a non-responsible bidder may apply to the bidder's subsequent bids.

2.31. INSPECTOR GENERAL AND LEGISLATIVE INSPECTOR GENERAL

It is the duty of any bidder, proposer or Consultant, all Subcontractors, every applicant for certification of eligibility for a City contract or program, and all officers, directors, agents, partners and employees of any bidder, proposer, Consultant, Subcontractor or such applicant to cooperate with the Inspector General or the Legislative Inspector General in any investigation or hearing, if applicable, undertaken pursuant to Chapters 2-56 or 2-55, respectively, of the Municipal Code. Contractor understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapters 2-56 and 2-55 of the Municipal Code. All subcontracts must inform Subcontractors of the provisions and require understanding and compliance with them.

2.32. SECTION 2-92-380 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO

In accordance with Section 2-92-380 of the Municipal Code of Chicago and in addition to any other rights and remedies (including any of set-off) available to the City of Chicago under the contract or permitted at law or in equity, the City will be entitled to set off a portion of the contract price or compensation due under the contract, in an amount equal to the amount of the fines and penalties for each outstanding parking violation complaint and the amount of any debt owed by the contracting party to the City. For purposes of this section, outstanding parking violation complaint means a parking ticket, notice of parking violation, or parking violation complaint on which no payment has been made or appearance filed in the Circuit Court of Cook County within the time specified on the complaint. debt means a specified sum of money owed to the City for which the period granted for payment has expired.

Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), above, no such debt(s) or outstanding parking violation complaint(s) will be offset from the contract price or compensation due under the contract if one or more of the following conditions are met:

the contracting party has entered into an agreement with the Department of Revenue, or other appropriate City department, for the payment of all outstanding parking violation complaints and debts owed to the City and the contracting party is in compliance with the agreement; or

the contracting party is contesting liability for or the amount of the debt in a pending administrative or judicial proceeding; or

the contracting party has filed a petition in bankruptcy and the debts owed the City are dischargeable in bankruptcy.

2.33. SECTION 11-4-1600(E) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF CHICAGO

In accordance with Section 11-4-1600(e) of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Contractor warrants and represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its Subcontractors have not violated and are not in violation of the following sections of the Code (collectively, the Waste Sections):

7-28-390 Dumping on public way;
7-28-440 Dumping on real estate without permit;
11-4-1410 Disposal in waters prohibited;
11-4-1420 Ballast tank, bilge tank or other discharge;
11-4-1450 Gas manufacturing residue;

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 12 of 55

11-4-1500 Treatment and disposal of solid or liquid waste;
11-4-1530 Compliance with rules and regulations required;
11-4-1550 Operational requirements; and
11-4-1560 Screening requirements.

During the period while this Contract is executory, Contractor's or any Subcontractor's violation of the Waste Sections, whether or not relating to the performance of this Contract, constitutes a breach of and an event of default under this Contract, for which the opportunity to cure, if curable, will be granted only at the sole discretion of the Chief Procurement Officer. Such breach and default entitles the City to all remedies under the Contract, at law or in equity.

This section does not limit the Contractor's and its Subcontractors' duty to comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances and executive orders, in effect now or later, and whether or not they appear in this Contract.

Non-compliance with these terms and conditions may be used by the City as grounds for the termination of this Contract, and may further affect the Contractor's eligibility for future contract awards.

2.34. BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED OFFICIALS

Pursuant to Section 2-156-030(b) of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, it is illegal for any elected official of the city, or any person acting at the direction of such official, to contact, either orally or in writing, any other city official or employee with respect to any matter involving any person with whom the elected official has a business relationship, or to participate in any discussion in any city council committee hearing or in any city council meeting or to vote on any matter involving the person with whom an elected official has a business relationship. Violation of Section 2-156-030(b) by any elected official with respect to this contract will be grounds for termination of this contract. The term business relationship is defined as set forth in Section 2-156-080 of the Municipal Code of Chicago.

Section 2-156-080 defines a "business relationship" as any contractual or other private business dealing of an official, or his or her spouse, or of any entity in which an official or his or her spouse has a financial interest, with a person or entity which entitles an official to compensation or payment in the amount of \$2,500 or more in a calendar year; provided, however, a financial interest shall not include: (i) any ownership through purchase at fair market value or inheritance of less than one percent of the share of a corporation, or any corporate subsidiary, parent or affiliate thereof, regardless of the value of or dividends on such shares, if such shares are registered on a securities exchange pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; (ii) the authorized compensation paid to an official or employee for his office or employment; (iii) any economic benefit provided equally to all residents of the city; (iv) a time or demand deposit in a financial institution; or (v) an endowment or insurance policy or annuity contract purchased from an insurance company. A "contractual or other private business dealing" will not include any employment relationship of an official's spouse with an entity when such spouse has no discretion concerning or input relating to the relationship between that entity and the city.

2.35. MACBRIDE PRINCIPLES ORDINANCE

The City of Chicago through the passage of the MacBride Principles Ordinance seeks to promote fair and equal employment opportunities and labor practices for religious minorities in Northern Ireland and provide a better working environment for all citizens in Northern Ireland.

In accordance with Section 2-92-580 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, if the primary Contractor conducts any business operations in Northern Ireland, it is hereby required that the Contractor will make all reasonable and good faith efforts to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland as defined in Illinois Public Act 85-1390 (1988 III. Laws 3220).

For those Contractors who take exception in competitive bid contracts to the provision set forth above, the City will assess an eight percent (8%) penalty. This penalty will increase their bid price for the purpose of canvassing the bids in order to determine who is to be the lowest responsible bidder. This penalty will apply only for purposes of comparing bid amounts and will not affect the amount of any contract payment.

The provisions of this Section will not apply to contracts for which the City receives funds administered by the United States Department of Transportation, except to the extent Congress has directed that the Department of Transportation

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 13 of 55

not withhold funds from states and localities that choose to implement selective purchasing policies based on agreement to comply with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland, or to the extent that such funds are not otherwise withheld by the Department of Transportation.

2.36. CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

The Contractor or each joint venture partner, if applicable, must complete the appropriate subsections in the attached Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit (the Affidavit) under: Certification By Applicant, which certifies that the Contractor or each joint venture partner, its agents, employees, officers and any subcontractors (a) have not been engaged in or been convicted of bribery or attempted bribery of a public officer or employee of the City of Chicago, the State of Illinois, any agency of the federal government or any state or local government in the United States or engaged in or been convicted of bid-rigging or bid-rotation activities as defined in this section as required by the Illinois Criminal Code; (b) do not owe any debts to the State of Illinois, in accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1 and (c) are not presently debarred or suspended: Certification Regarding Environmental Compliance; Certification Regarding Ethics and Inspector General; and Certification Regarding Court-Ordered Child Support Compliance.

2.37. COMPLIANCE WITH CHILD SUPPORT ORDERS ORDINANCE

The Child Support Arrearage Ordinance, Municipal Code of Chicago, Section 2-92-415, furthers the City's interest in contracting with entities which demonstrate financial responsibility, integrity and lawfulness, and finds that it is especially inequitable for Contractors to obtain the benefits of public funds under City contracts while its owners fail to pay court-ordered child support, and shift the support of their dependents onto the public treasury.

In accordance with Section 2-92-415 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, if the Circuit Court of Cook County or an Illinois court of competent jurisdiction has issued an order declaring one or more Substantial Owner in arrearage on their child support obligations and: (1) a one such Substantial Owner has not entered into a court-approved agreement for the payment of all such child support owed, or (2) a Substantial Owner is not in compliance with a court-approved agreement for the payment of all such child support owed, (see Certification of Compliance with Child Support Orders in Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit), then:

For those bidders in competitive bid contracts, the City will assess an eight percent (8%) penalty. This penalty will increase their bid price for the purpose of canvassing the bids in order to determine the lowest responsible bidder. This penalty will apply only for purposes of comparing bid amounts and will not affect the amount of any contract payment.

For purposes of this section, "SUBSTANTIAL OWNER" means any person who owns or holds a ten percent (10%) or more percentage of interest in the bidder; where the bidder is an individual or sole proprietorship, substantial owner means that individual or sole proprietorship.

"PERCENTAGE OF INTEREST" includes direct, indirect and beneficial interests in the Contractor. Indirect or beneficial interest means that an interest in the Contractor is held by a corporation, joint venture, trust, partnership, association, estate or other legal entity, in which the individual holds an interest, or by agent(s) or nominee(s) on behalf of an individual or entity. For example, if Corporation B holds or owns a twenty percent (20%) interest in Contractor, and an individual or entity has a fifty percent (50%) or more percentage of interest in Corporation B, then such individual or entity indirectly has a ten percent (10%) or more percentage of interest in the Contractor. If Corporation B is held by another entity, then this analysis similarly must be applied to that next entity.

The provisions of this Section will only apply where not otherwise prohibited by federal, state or local law.

2.38. NON-COLLUSION, BRIBERY OF A PUBLIC OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE

Contractor, in performing under this contract must comply with the Municipal Code of Chicago, Section 2-92-320, as follows:

No person or business entity will be awarded a contract or sub-contract if that person or business entity: (a) has been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe a public officer or employee of the City of Chicago, the State of Illinois, or any agency of the federal government or of any state or local government in the United States, in that officers or employee's official capacity; or (b) has been convicted of agreement or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders in restraint of freedom of competition by agreement to bid a fixed price, or otherwise; or (c) has made an admission of guilt of such conduct described in (a) or (b) above which is a matter of record but has not been prosecuted for such conduct.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 14 of 55

For purposes of this section, where an official, agent or employee of a business entity has committed any offense under this section on behalf of such an entity and pursuant to the direction or authorization of a responsible official thereof, the business entity shall be chargeable with the conduct. One business entity shall be chargeable with the conduct of an affiliated agency.

Ineligibility under this section will continue for three (3) years following such conviction or admission. The period of ineligibility may be reduced, suspended, or waived by the Chief Procurement Officer under certain specific circumstances. Reference is made to Section 2-92-320 for a definition of affiliated agency, and a detailed description of the conditions which would permit the Chief Procurement Officer to reduce, suspend, or waive the period of ineligibility.

2.39. FEDERAL TERRORIST (NO-BUSINESS) LIST

Contractor warrants and represents that neither Contractor nor an Affiliate, as defined below, appears on the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the Unverified List, the Entity List, or the Debarred List as maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury or by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of Commerce or their successors, or on any other list of persons or entities with which the City may not do business under any applicable law, rule, regulation, order or judgment.

"Affiliate" means a person or entity which directly, or indirectly through one or more entity will be deemed to be controlled by another person or entity if it is controlled in any manner whatsoever that results in control in fact by that other person or entity, either acting individually or acting jointly or in concert with others, whether directly or indirectly and whether through share ownership, a trust, a contract or otherwise.

2.40. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

Contractor must observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, regulations, codes, ordinances and executive orders, in effect now or later and whether or not they appear in the Agreement, including those specifically referenced herein or in any of the Contract Documents. Contractor must pay all taxes and obtain all licenses, certificates and other authorizations required in connection with the performance of its obligations hereunder, and Contractor must require all Subcontractors to do so. Failure to do so is an event of default and may result in the termination of this Agreement.

The Contractor understands and will abide by the terms of Chapter 2-55 of the Municipal Code of Chicago.

The Contractor will comply with Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code of Chicago.

Failure by the Contractor or any Controlling Person (defined in Section 1-23-010 of the Municipal Code) thereof to maintain eligibility to do business with the City in violation of Section 1-23-030 of the Municipal Code shall render this Contract voidable or subject to termination, at the option of the Chief Procurement Officer. Contractor agrees that Contractor's failure to maintain eligibility (or failure by Controlling Persons to maintain eligibility) to do business with the City in violation of Section 1-23-030 of the Municipal Code shall constitute an event of default.

2.41. COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

The Contractor will comply with all laws relating to environmental matters including without limitation, those relating to fines, orders, injunctions, penalties, damages, contribution, cost recovery compensation, losses or injuries resulting from the release or threatened release of hazardous materials,, special wastes or other contaminants into the environment and to the generation, use, storage, transportation, or disposal of solid wastes, hazard materials, special wastes or other contaminants (collectively, "Environmental Laws") including, but not limited to, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the Department of Transportation Regulations, the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, the Clean Air Act, the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (40 C.F.R.61.145), and the Municipal Code, as currently in effect and as amended during the course of the contract period.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 15 of 55

If any Environmental Laws require the Contractor to file any notice or report of a release or threatened release of hazardous materials, special wastes or other contaminants on, under or about any premises used by Contractor to perform the Services required hereunder, the Contractor shall provide a copy of such report or notice to the City. In the event of a release or threatened release of hazardous materials, special waste or other contaminants into the environment or in the event any claim, demand, action or notice is made against the Contractor regarding the Contractor's failure or alleged failure to comply with any Environmental Laws, the Contractor must immediately notify the City in writing and will provide the City with copies of any written claims, demands, notices or actions so made.

A. As part of its Compliance with All Laws, as set forth hereinabove, Contractor must observe and comply with, inter alia, all Environmental Laws and impose on all Subcontractors all requirements of all environmental Laws. No provision of this Contract limits, or is intended in any way to limit, Contractor's obligation to observe and comply with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws.

By entering into this Contract, Contractor acknowledges that many Environmental Laws may apply to the Contract and to Contractor's and Subcontractors' performance of the Work.

By entering into this Contract, Contractor also acknowledges that U.S. EPA, U.S. DOT and other agencies of the federal, state and local governments have issued and are expected in the future to issue regulations, guidelines, standards, orders, directives, or other requirements that may affect the Contract or the Work.

Listed below in Section H are requirements of particular concern to the City. By entering into this Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that this list does not constitute the only Environmental Laws that apply or may apply to performance of the Work under this Contract.

Contractor must include the provisions listed in Section H in all subcontracts; and Contractor must additionally include in all subcontracts a statement specifying that the provisions so listed do not constitute the only Environmental Laws that apply or may apply to Subcontractors' performance of and under their subcontracts with Contractor.

By entering into this Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if Contractor fails to comply with any Environmental Law, the City may terminate this Contract in accordance with the default provisions of this contract. By entering into this Contract, Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that such termination may adversely affect Contractor's eligibility for future contract awards.

B. Notification of Environmental Claims and of Community Meetings and Media Involvement

In the event of any claim, demand, action notice of violation or other notice of any kind by any person or any entity of any kind, whatsoever, against Contractor or any Subcontractor regarding Contractor's or any Subcontractor's failure or alleged failure to comply with any Environmental Law ("Environmental Claim"), Contractor must notify the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment within twenty-four(24) hours of becoming aware of such Environmental Claim and must also submit a copy of any Environmental Claim to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment within twenty-four(24) hours of receipt of same by Contractor or any Subcontractor.

Contractor must provide evidence to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment that any such Environmental Claim has been addressed to the satisfaction of its issuer or initiator or to the satisfaction of a court or administrative agency having jurisdiction with respect to the claim, demand, action notice of violation or other notice of any kind, or to the satisfaction of the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment.

Contractor must notify the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment of any community meetings, media involvement or media coverage relating to: any release, alleged release, threatened release, or allegedly threatened release of any substance, matter or thing relating in any way to the Work under this Contract; any loading, transportation/hauling, treatment,

storage, disposal or other handling of any materials, including but not limited to any Waste, under this Contract; or otherwise relating to any Environmental Laws or any charge or allegation of violation of or noncompliance with any Environmental Laws, in which Contractor or any Subcontractor is asked or invited to participate. The notice must be provided to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment as early as possible before Contractor or any Subcontractor participates in any such community meetings, media involvement or media coverage.

C. Releases and Threatened Releases

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, in the event of any release or threatened release of any material, including but not limited to Waste, and including but not limited to any Hazardous Waste or Special Waste, relating in any way to any of the Work under this Contract, regardless whether such release or threatened release is caused or contributed to by Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any other person or entity, Contractor must promptly notify the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment and provide all pertinent information, including but not limited to the nature, scope, location and sources or causes of the release or threatened release and all actions taken, being taken and to be taken by Contractor and any Subcontractors with respect to the release or threatened release.

If Contractor or any Subcontractor is required pursuant to any Environmental Law to submit or file any notice or report of any kind to any person or entity relating to any release, alleged release, threatened release or allegedly threatened release of any substance, matter or thing relating in any way to any of the Work under this Contract, Contractor must provide a copy of such notice or report to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment at the same time that Contractor or any Subcontractor submits or files the notice or report in accordance with the Environmental Law.

D. Environmental Permits and Other Environmental Records and Reports.

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must show evidence of, and keep current throughout the term of this Contract, all permits, insurance certificates and other authorizations required by any federal, State, City or other governmental body or agency pursuant to any Environmental Law.

When requested by the Chief Procurement Officer or Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment, Contractor must submit copies of any or all permits, insurance certificates and other authorizations required by any Environmental Law.

Copies of all permits, insurance certificates and other authorizations that require periodic renewal must be forwarded to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment throughout the duration of this Contract.

By entering into this Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that noncompliance with these requirements constitutes sufficient cause for termination of this Contract and for declaring Contractor non-responsible in future bids.

In addition to any and all other records and reports that are or may be required by any Environmental Laws, Contractor is required to prepare and maintain proper, accurate and complete records of accounts of all transactions related to the performance of this Contract, including but not limited to:

- 1. Vehicle maintenance records;
- Safety and accident reports;
- IEPA or OSHA manifests;
- 4. Disposal records, including but not limited to records showing the disposal site used, date, truck number and disposal weight, types of waste, bills of lading, manifests, or other confirmatory receipts signed by a representative of accepting facility for each load of material; and

 Permit documentation and all other documentation and transactions pertaining to all Environmental Laws.

E. Handling of Materials, Including but Not Limited to Waste

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor is responsible for the proper, lawful handling, including but not limited to treatment, storage, transportation/hauling and disposal, of all materials, including but not limited to all Waste, by Contractor and all Subcontractors.

By entering into this Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that treatment, storage, transportation/hauling, disposal or other handling by a Subcontractor or other third party does not relieve Contractor of its responsibility for proper treatment, storage, transportation/hauling, disposal and other handling of all materials, including but not limited to all Waste.

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, all treatment, storage, transportation/hauling, disposal and other handling of any materials, including but not limited to any Waste, must be at a facility that is properly licensed and permitted in accordance with any and all Environmental Laws to accept and treat, store, transport/haul, dispose or otherwise handle the particular materials delivered to it in accordance with all Environmental Laws ("Facility").

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, before generating or in any way handling any Waste relating to the Work under this Contract, or allowing any Subcontractor to generate or handle any Waste, Contractor must identify to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment all Facilities to which Contractor has contractual access and for which all required permits and/or licenses have been obtained and are current and valid.

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must upon request provide the Chief Procurement Officer or Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment or his designated representative with copies of all documents, including but not limited to load tickets, manifests, bills of lading, scale tickets, and permits and/or licenses, pertaining to any treatment, storage, transportation/hauling, disposal and other handling of any material, including but not limited to any Waste, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any Facility or other third party, that Contractor or any Subcontractor submits to, prepares for, or receives from any Facilities that Contractor uses in the course of its performance of and under this Contract.

If any Facility that Contractor proposes to use does not possess all necessary, current, valid permits and/or licenses to accept the materials to be treated, stored or disposed of, then Contractor must replace the Facility submitted as part of its bid proposal at no additional cost to the City.

If Contractor disposes of any materials, including but not limited to any Waste, at any site that is not properly permitted, Contractor, by entering into this Contract, acknowledges and agrees that it will be responsible for all costs associated with the removal of the materials to a properly licensed/permitted Facility and for any other costs, including but not limited to any civil or other penalties, damages, fees, charges, litigation costs, attorneys' fees, or other costs of any kind, whatsoever, that apply or may apply as a result of the application or enforcement of any Laws and any response thereto.

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must verify, in writing, whenever requested by the Chief Procurement Officer or Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment, that all materials, including but not limited to Waste, that Contractor or any Subcontractor generates or accepts from the City have been treated, transported/hauled, stored, disposed of or otherwise handled in compliance with all Environmental Laws.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 18 of 55

The form for identifying Contractor's Facilit(ies) and acknowledging terms and conditions relating thereto that Contractor has executed and attached to this Contract is incorporated by reference (Attachment "B"). In addition to the representations and requirements contained on Attachment B, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment, Contractor must not use or continue to use any Facility identified on Attachment B that (i) has been cited by any governmental agent or entity as being in violation of any Environmental Law or of any City ordinance of any kind, whatsoever; or (ii) does not have a legally required permit. If only one (1) Facility was identified on Attachment B, Contractor must arrange for a substitute Facility that meets the requirements specified on Attachment B and provide a revised Attachment to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment before transporting/hauling or allowing the transport/hauling of any material, including but not limited to any Waste, to any Facility. Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that any such substitution and any delay or activity of any kind relating to any such substitution is at no additional cost to the City, regardless of the reasons necessitating such substitution.

F. Equipment and Environmental Control During Transport

As part of or in addition to the requirement to observe and comply with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must transport/haul all materials, including but not limited to Waste, in vehicles and/or containers that comply with all Environmental Laws; and all equipment used to transport any materials, including but not limited to Waste, must be designed and operated to prevent spillage, leakage, or other release of any kind during the transport operation.

Also as part of or in addition to the requirement to observe and comply with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, all equipment used by Contractor or any Subcontractor must fully comply with all Laws, including but not limited to all Laws pertaining to size, load weight, safety, and including but not limited to any Environmental Laws.

G. Environmental Control

In performing the Work, and as part or in addition to of the requirement to observe and comply with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must become thoroughly familiar with all Laws relating to, inter alia, the elimination of excessive noise and pollution of air, water, and soil due to construction and other operations.

As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must employ all reasonable measures to reduce the noise of heavy construction equipment and to control and minimize any dust, smoke, and fumes from construction equipment and other operations on the Work site and any dirt and noise created by heavy truck operations over City streets.

H. Environmental Protection

The purpose of this subsection is to alert Contractor to some of the Environmental Laws that affect or may affect this Contract or Contractor's or Subcontractors' performance of and under same. This subsection does not, and is not intended to, set forth all of the Laws or Environmental Laws with which Contractor must comply. By entering into this Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that this subsection does not and is not intended in any way to limit Contractor's obligation to comply with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, and with all other provisions of this Contract, in performing the Work.

Some, but not all, of the major federal Laws that affect or may affect this Contract or Contractor's or Subcontractors' performance of and under same, are: the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 42 USC §§ 4321 et seq.; the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 USC §§ 7401 et seq. and scattered sections of 29 USC; the Clean Water Act, as amended, scattered sections of 33 USC and 12 USC; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 USC §§ 6901 et seq.; Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended, 15 USC §§2601 et seq., and the Comprehensive Environmental

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 19 of 55

Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended, 42 USC §§ 9601 et seq. Contractor and Subcontractors must also comply with, inter alia, Executive Order No. 12898, "Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations," 59 Fed. Reg. 7629, Feb. 16, 1994; U.S. DOT statutory requirements on environmental matters at 49 USC § 5324(b); Council on Environmental Quality regulations on compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 40 CFR Part 1500 et seq.; and U.S. DOT regulations, "Environmental Impact and Related Procedures," 23 CFR Part 771 and 49 CFR Part 622.

- Air Quality. As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all 1. Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must comply with all applicable standards, orders, rules or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as This includes, but is not limited to, compliance with amended, 42 USC §§ 7401, et seq. applicable requirements of U.S. EPA regulations, "Conformity to State of Federal Implementation Plans of Transportation Plans, Programs, and Projects Developed, Funded or Approved Under Title 23 USC or the Federal Transit Act," 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart T; and "Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans," 40 CFR Part 93; and National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), 40 CFR § 61.145. As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor further must report and require each Subcontractor at any tier to report any violation of these requirements resulting from any Contract implementation activity to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment and the appropriate U.S. EPA Regional Office.
- Clean Water. As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must comply with all applicable standards, orders, rules or regulations issued pursuant to the federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC §§ 1251 et seq. As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor further must report and require each Subcontractor at any tier to report any violation of these requirements resulting from any Contract implementation activity to the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment and the appropriate U.S. EPA Regional Office.
- 3. List of Violating Facilities. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any facility of any kind to be used in the performance of the Contract or to benefit from the Contract must not be listed on the U.S. EPA List of Violating Facilities ("List"), and as part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must promptly notify the Chief Procurement Officer and Commissioner of the Chicago Department of Environment if Contractor or any Subcontractor receives any communication from the U.S. EPA that any such facility is under consideration for inclusion on the List.

Preference for Recycled Products. To the extent practicable and economically feasible and to the extent that it does not reduce or impair the quality of the Work, Contractor must use recycled products in performance of the Contract pursuant to U.S. Environment Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) guidelines at 40 CFR Parts 247-253, which implement section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 USC § 6962.

Waste Handling. As part of or in addition to complying with all Laws, including but not limited to all Environmental Laws, as those terms are defined hereinabove, Contractor must comply with all waste handling provisions set out in the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, 415 ILCS 5/1, et seq., the Illinois Administrative Code, and Chapters 7-28 and 11-4 of the Chicago Municipal Code.

2.42. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Contract is held or considered to be or is in fact invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case or in any jurisdiction or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or provisions

of this Contract or of any constitution, statute, ordinance, rule of law or public policy, or for any other reason, those circumstances do not have the effect of rendering the provision in question invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable in any case or circumstances, or of rendering any other provision or provisions in this Contract invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatsoever. The invalidity, illegality, inoperativeness or unenforceability of any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections in this Contract does not affect the remaining portions of this Contract or any part of it.

2.43. FALSE STATEMENTS

False statements made in connection with this Contract, including statements in, omissions from and failures to timely update the Economic Disclosure Statement (EDS), as well as in any other affidavits, statements or contract documents constitute a material breach of the Contract. Any such misrepresentation renders the Contract voidable at the option of the City, notwithstanding any prior review or acceptance by the City of any materials containing such a misrepresentation. In addition, the City may debar Contractor, assert any contract claims or seek other civil or criminal remedies as a result of a misrepresentation including costs of replacing a terminated Contractor pursuant to Chicago Municipal Ordinance 1-21-010.

2.44. REGARDING BUSINESS ENTERPRISES OWNED BY PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES COMMITTMENT

Policy and Terms

It is the policy of the City of Chicago that businesses certified as Business Enterprises owned by People with Disabilities (BEPD) in accordance with Section 2-92-337 et seq. of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Regulations Governing Certification of Business Enterprises owned by People with Disabilities, and all other Regulations promulgated under the aforementioned sections of the Municipal Code; shall have the full and fair opportunities to participate fully in the performance of this Agreement. Therefore, the Bidder or Contractor shall not discriminate against any person or business on the basis of disability, and shall take affirmative actions to ensure BEPDs shall have full and fair opportunities to compete for and perform subcontracts for supplies or services.

Failure to carry out the commitments and policies set forth herein shall constitute a material breach of the Contract and may result in the termination of the Contract or such remedy as the City of Chicago deems appropriate.

Definitions

For purposes of this section only, the following definitions apply:

- 1) "Business Enterprises owned by People with Disabilities" or "BEPD" has the same meaning ascribed to it in section 2-92-586.
- 2) "Bid incentive" means an amount deducted, for bid evaluation purposes only, from the contract base bid in order to calculate the bid price to be used to evaluate the bid on a competitively bid contract.
- 3) "Construction project" has the same meaning ascribed to it in section 2-92-335.
- 4) "Contract" means any contract, purchase order, construction project, or other agreement (other than a delegate agency contract or lease of real property or collective bargaining agreement) awarded by the City and whose costs is to be paid from funds belonging to or administered by the City.
- 5) "Contract base bid" means the total dollar amount a contractor bids on a contract without factoring any bid incentive or percentage reductions to the bid amount.
- 6) "Earned credit" means the amount of the bid incentive allocated to a contractor upon completion of a contract in which the contractor met or exceeded his or her goals for the utilization of BEPDs in the performance of the contract.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 21 of 55

7) "Earned credit certificate" means a certificate issued by the Chief Procurement Officer evidencing the amount of earned credit a contractor has been awarded.

Commitments

The Chief Procurement Officer shall award a bid incentive to Contractor for utilization of a BEPD as a prime contractor or subcontractor in accordance with the provisions of this section. The bid incentive shall be earned in the performance of the Contract, provided that the bid incentive earned in the performance of the Contract shall only be applied to a future contract.

Where not otherwise prohibited by federal, state, or local law, the Chief Procurement Officer shall allocate to any qualified bidder the following bid incentive for utilization of a BEPD as a prime contractor or subcontractor in the performance of the contract.

Percent of total dollar contract amount performed by BEPD	Bid incentive
2 to 5%	1/2% of the contract base bid
6 to 10%	1% of the contract base bid
11% or more	2% of the contract base bid

The bid incentive shall be calculated and applied in accordance with the provisions of this section. The bid incentive is used only to calculate an amount to be used in evaluating the bid. The bid incentive does not affect the contract price.

As part of the contract close-out procedure, if the Chief Procurement Officer determines that the Contractor has successfully met his or her BEPD utilization goals either as a prime contractor or with subcontractors, the Chief Procurement Officer shall issue an earned credit certificate that evidences the amount of earned credits allocated to the Contractor. The Contractor may apply the earned credits as the bid incentive for any future contract bid of equal or less dollar amount. The earned credit certificate is valid for three years from the date of issuance and shall not be applied towards any future contract bid after the expiration of that period.

The Contractor may apply the earned credit certificate on multiple future contract bids during the three-year period in which the certificate is valid, but may only receive one bid incentive for bid evaluation purposes on one contract award. If the Contractor applies the earned credit certificate on multiple contract bids and is the lowest responsive and responsible bidder on more than one contract bid, the earned credit certificate shall be applied to the contract bid first to be advertised by the Department of Procurement Services, or if multiple contract bids were advertised on the same date, the earned credit certificate shall be applied only to the contract bid with the greatest dollar value.

The Contractor shall maintain accurate and detailed books and records necessary to monitor compliance with this section and shall submit such reports as required by the Chief Procurement Officer, or the commissioner of the supervising department.

Full access to the Contractor's and Subcontractor's records shall be granted to the Chief Procurement Officer, the commissioner of the supervising department, or any duly authorized representative thereof. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall maintain all relevant records for a period of at least three years after final acceptance of the work.

The Chief Procurement Officer is authorized to adopt, promulgate and enforce reasonable rules and regulations pertaining to the administration and enforcement of this section.

2.45. OFFICE OF COMPLIANCE

It is the duty of any bidder, proposer, Consultant, Contractor, all Subcontractors, and every applicant for certification of eligibility for a City Agreement or program, and all officers, directors, agents, partners and employees of any bidder, proper, consultant or such applicant to cooperate with the Office of Compliance in any investigation or audit pursuant to Chapter 2-26 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. The Consultant understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapter 2-26 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. All subcontracts will inform Subcontractors of this provision and require understanding and compliance with it."

2.46. SHAKMAN ACCORD

The City is subject to the May 31, 2007 Order entitled "Agreed Settlement Order and Accord" (the "Shakman Accord") and the August 16, 2007: "City of Chicago Hiring Plan" (the "City Hiring Plan") entered in Shakman v. Democratic Organization of Cook County, Case No 69 C 2145 (United State District Court for the Northern District of Illinois). Among other things, the Shakman Accord and the City Hiring Plan prohibit the City from hiring persons as governmental employees in non-exempt positions on the basis of political reasons or factors.

Consultant is aware that City policy prohibits City employees from directing any individual to apply for a position with Consultant, either as an employee or as a subcontractor, and from directing Consultant to hire an individual as an employee or as a subcontractor. Accordingly, Consultant must follow its own hiring and contracting procedures, without being influenced by City employees. Any and all personnel provided by Consultant under this Agreement are employees or subcontractors of Consultant, not employees of the City of Chicago. This Agreement is not intended to and does not constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize an employer-employee relationship of any kind between the City and any personnel provided by Consultant.

Consultant will not condition, base, or knowingly prejudice or affect any term or aspect of the employment of any personnel provided under this Agreement, or offer employment to any individual to provide services under this Agreement, based upon or because of any political reason or factor, including, without limitation, any individual's political affiliation, membership in a political organization or party, political support or activity, political financial contributions, promises of such political support, activity or financial contributions, or such individual's political sponsorship or recommendation. For purposes of this Agreement, a political organization or party is an identifiable group or entity that has as its primary purpose the support of or opposition to candidates for elected public office. Individual political activities are the activities of individual persons in support of or in opposition to political organizations or parties or candidates for elected public office.

In the event of any communication to Consultant by a City employee or City official in violation of Section 9.9(c)(ii) above, or advocating a violation of Section 9.9(c)(iii) above, Consultant will, as soon as is reasonably practicable, report such communication to the Hiring Oversight Section of the City's Office of the Inspector General, and also to the head of the relevant City Department utilizing services provided under this Agreement.

2.47. DEFAULT

The City may, subject to the provisions of paragraph (C) below, by written notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this contract in any one of the following circumstances:

if the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the time specified herein or any extension thereof; or

if the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract, or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance of this contract in accordance with its terms, and in either of these two (2) circumstances does not cure such failure within a period of ten (10) calendar days (or such other period as the Chief Procurement Officer may authorize in writing) after receipt of notice from the Chief Procurement Officer specifying such failure.

In the event the City terminates this contract in whole or in part as provided in paragraph (A) of this clause, the City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as the Chief Procurement Officer may deem appropriate, supplies or services similar to those so terminated, and the Contractor must be liable to the City for any excess costs for such similar supplies or service: provided, that the Contractor must continue the performance of this to the extent not terminated under the provisions of this clause.

C. The Contractor will not be liable for any excess of costs if acceptable evidence has been submitted to the Chief Procurement Officer the failure to perform the contract was due to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor.

2.48. DISPUTES

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, Contractor must and the City may bring any dispute arising under this Contract which is not resolved by the parties to the Chief Procurement Officer for decision based upon the written submissions of the parties. (A copy of the "Regulations of the Department of Procurement Services for Resolution of Disputes between Contractors and the City of Chicago" is available in City Hall, 121 North LaSalle Street, Room 301, Bid and Bond Room.) The Chief Procurement Officer will issue a written decision and send it to the Contractor by mail. The decision of the Chief Procurement Officer is final and binding. The sole and exclusive remedy to challenge the decision of the Chief Procurement Officer is judicial review by means of a common law writ of certiorari.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 24 of 55

3. SPECIAL CONDITIONS

3.1. PERFORMANCE BOND

Performance Bond not required.

3.2. BID DEPOSIT

Bid Deposit not required.

3.3. QUANTITIES

Any quantities of Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon shown on the Proposal Page(s) are estimates for the initial sixty (60) month Contract term and are for bid canvassing purposes only. The City reserves the right to increase or decrease quantities ordered under this contract. Nothing herein will be construed as an intent on the part of the City to purchase any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon other than those determined by the Department of Water Management to be necessary to meet their current needs.

The City will be obligated to order and pay for only such quantities as are from time to time ordered on blanket purchase order releases issued directly by the Department of Water Management, delivered and accepted.

3.4. BASIS OF AWARD

A Contract will be awarded based on the Lowest Total Bid Price proposed by a responsive and responsible bidder meeting the terms and conditions of the specification.

Bidders must quote all line items specified. Bids submitted to the contrary will be considered incomplete, and as a result, will be rejected. Each bid line's extended price will be determined by multiplying its estimated quantity by its unit price. The sum of the extended prices for all lines will be the Total Bid Price.

The Contractor's bid pricing must incorporate any/all peripheral costs including, but not limited to the costs of the Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, delivery/transportation charges, taxes, insurance, training, fluids, guarantee/warranties, profit and/or overhead, etc., required by the specifications.

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to award a Contract, or reject any/all bids, when in the opinion of the Chief Procurement Officer, the best interests of the City would be served thereby.

3.5. SAMPLES

In order to determine that the proposed Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon conform to this specification the City reserves the right to test and/or inspect bidder's products.

For bid evaluation purposes, the bidder must furnish and deliver, upon request by the Chief Procurement Officer, one (1) truckload of the proposed Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon within five (5) calendar days from the receipt of notice. The samples must be delivered F.O.B., City of Chicago, Department of Water Management Jardine Water Purification Plant 1000 East Ohio Street, Chicago, IL 60611 and the South Water Purification Plant, 3300 East Cheltenham Place, Chicago IL 60649. The samples must be tagged or labeled with the company name, address and City specification number and commodity code. Failure to furnish said samples within this time period will be cause for rejection of the bid for being non-responsive to this requirement.

The City will not be liable for the condition of the Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon, if the bidder requests return of the sample. The cost to furnish and deliver said Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon will be borne by the bidder.

Other tests and measurements may also be performed throughout the Contract term, as determined by the City.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 25 of 55

3.6. CHICAGO BUSINESS PREFERENCE

For purposes of this provision, a "Chicago Business" is an entity which: (1) has meaningful, day-to-day business operations at a location(s) within the corporate limits of the City of Chicago; (2) reports to the Internal Revenue Service such location(s) as the place(s) of employment for the majority of its regular, full-time work force; (3) holds appropriate City of Chicago business license(s) (if such license(s) are required for the business); and (4) is subject to applicable City of Chicago taxes. City of Chicago taxes include, but are not limited to, employer's expense tax pursuant to Section 3-20-030 of the Municipal Code (if the business has fifty or more employees). Any entity desiring the Chicago Business designation must submit, at the time of bid, a completed, signed and notarized Affidavit of Chicago Business in the form that is included in this bid document as Section 13 ("Affidavit"). Failure to submit a properly completed Affidavit at the time of bid will result in the entity not being considered for the Chicago Business designation. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to investigate and verify any information submitted in an Affidavit but is under no obligation to do so. The Chief Procurement Officer's determination as to whether an entity qualifies for designation as a Chicago Business shall be final.

If a bidder is a joint venture, partnership or other business combination consisting of more than one entity (collectively, "joint venture"), and all entities comprising the joint venture (collectively, "members") are designated Chicago Businesses in accordance with the above paragraph, the joint venture will be deemed to be a Chicago Business. Where not all joint venture members are Chicago Businesses, such joint venture will be considered a Chicago Business only if Chicago Business members hold at least a fifty percent (50%) interest in the joint venture. Chicago Business members have a fifty percent (50%) interest in the joint venture only if the Chicago Business member(s) directly hold(s) a fifty percent ownership interest in the joint venture and either: (A) the Chicago Business member(s) directly employ(s) fifty percent or more of the workforce performing the duties that the joint venture will self-perform, including but not limited to management of the joint venture itself, or (B) the Chicago Business member(s), as direct subcontractor(s) to the joint venture, perform(s) work or services equal to fifty percent or more of the amount of the bid. Joint venture bidders whose members are NOT all Chicago Businesses must submit with their bids a copy of the signed joint venture agreement, copies any subcontracts with the Chicago Business members, and such other information as they deem relevant and necessary to establish their eligibility for the Chicago Business designation in accordance with this paragraph. Failure to submit such information at the time of bid will result in the joint venture not being considered for the Chicago Business designation. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to investigate and verify any information submitted by a joint venture bidder but is under no obligation to do so. The Chief Procurement Officer's determination as to whether a joint venture qualifies for designation as a Chicago Business shall be final.

In the event that there are bids both from Chicago Businesses and bidders that are not Chicago Businesses, the Chief Procurement Officer will accept the lowest bid price or lowest evaluated bid price, as applicable, from a responsive and responsible bidder that is a Chicago Business, provided that such bid price does not exceed by more than two percent (2%) the lowest bid price or lowest evaluated bid price, as applicable, from a responsive and responsible bidder that is not a Chicago Business.

3.7. MINORITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

It is the policy of the City of Chicago that local businesses certified as Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) and Women Business Enterprises (WBE) in accordance with Section 2-92-450 of the Municipal Code of Chicago and Regulations Governing Certification of Minority and Women-owned Businesses shall have the maximum opportunity to participate fully in the performance of all City contracts.

The Chief Procurement Officer has determined that the nature of the services to be provided under this contract are such that neither direct nor indirect subcontracting opportunities will be practicable or cost-effective. Therefore, there will be no stated goals for MBE/WBE participation resulting from this contract. This determination is being made pursuant to Section 2-92-450 of the Municipal Code of Chicago.

3.8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS TO BE COMPLETED BY BIDDER

Bidder will fully complete, sign, notarize and submit as part of your proposal the following documents incorporated herein:

Proposal Page(s).

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 26 of 55

- 2. Bid Data Pages
- 3. Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit.
- Affidavit of Chicago Business.
- 5. Proposal Execution Page, as applicable (Corporation, Partnership, Sole Proprietorship).
- 6. City of Chicago Insurance Certificate of Coverage.

NOTE: BIDDER MUST ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A FULL SET OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND ANY ADDENDA AT THE TOP OF THE PROPOSAL EXECUTION PAGE.

3.9. CONTRACT PERIOD

The contract will begin on _	, and continue through,	unless terminated prior to this date
according to the terms of th	e Termination provision, or extended as provided for herein	l.

The City will establish and enter the above start and expiration dates at the time of formal award and release of this contract unless negotiated prior to the award and release of the contract.

The start date will be no later than the first day of the succeeding month from the date shown as the Contract Award and Release Date on the Proposal Acceptance Page herein. The expiration date will be no later than the last day of the sixtieth (60th) full calendar month after the established start date.

3.10. CONTRACT EXTENSION OPTION

This Contract will be in effect for the dates indicated herein for the contract period. The Chief Procurement Officer may exercise the City's right to renew this Contract following the expiration of the base contract term for up to one hundred eighty-one (181) Calendar Days for the purpose of providing continuity of supply while procuring a replacement contract subject to acceptable performance by the Contractor and contingent upon the appropriation of sufficient funds for the purchase of the equipment provided for in this Contract. The Chief Procurement Officer will give the Contractor notice of the City's intent to exercise its option to renew the Contract for the approaching option period.

3.11. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

No change, amendment or modification of this Agreement, or any part hereof, is valid unless stipulated in writing and approved by the Chief Procurement Officer.

3.12. UNSPECIFIED ITEMS

Any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon not specifically listed herein may be added to this Contract if they fall within the same specific category of items/services already specified in the contract. The lifetime, aggregate value of the City's purchase of any items/services added to this Contract must not exceed ten percent (10%) of the original value of the Contract

The User Department will notify the Contractor in writing of the items which are necessary and request a written price proposal for the addition of the item(s) to this Contract under the same terms and conditions of the original Contract, then forward the documents to the Chief Procurement Officer. Such item(s) may be added to the Contract only if the prices are competitive with current market prices and said items are approved by the Chief Procurement Officer in writing. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to seek competitive pricing information on said item(s) from other suppliers and to procure such item(s) in a manner that serves the best interest of the City.

Any such item(s) delivered by the Contractor, without a written approval signed by the Chief Procurement Officer, are delivered entirely at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, in the event that such addition to the contract is not approved by

the Chief Procurement Officer, the Contractor hereby releases the City from any liability whatsoever to pay for any items delivered prior to the Contractors receipt of the fully signed modification.

3.13. PARTICIPATION BY OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

Other local government agencies may be eligible to participate in this agreement pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Contract if such agencies are authorized, by law or their governing bodies, to execute such purchases, and if such authorization is allowed by the City of Chicago's Chief Procurement Officer, and if such purchases have no net adverse effect on the City of Chicago, and result in no diminished services from the Contractor to the City's user departments pursuant to such purchases. Examples of such Local Government Agencies are: Board of Education, Chicago Park District, City Colleges of Chicago, Chicago Transit Authority, Chicago Housing Authority, Chicago Board of Elections, Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority (McCormick Place, Navy Pier), and the Municipal Courts. Said purchases shall be made upon the issuance of a purchase order directly from the Local Government Agency. The City will not be responsible for payment of any amounts owed by any other Local Government Agencies, and will have no liability for the acts or omissions of any other Local Government Agency.

3.14. PURCHASE ORDER BLANKET RELEASES

Requests for Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon in the form of City of Chicago blanket releases (a.k.a. purchase order releases or suborders) will be issued by the Department of Water Management and sent to the Contractor to be applied against the Contract. Blanket releases will indicate the specification number, purchase order number, blanket release number, product description, quantities ordered for each line item, unit cost, total cost, shipping address, delivery date, fund chargeable information and other pertinent instructions regarding delivery.

For purchase order releases placed before a price increase effective date, Contractor must honor Contract prices listed on the purchase order release including releases with multiple delivery shipments that are scheduled after the effective date of the increase.

The Contractor must not honor any order(s) or make any deliveries of Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon without receipt of a City of Chicago blanket release issued by the Department. Any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon provided by the Contractor without a blanket release is made at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, in the event such blanket release is not provided by the City, the Contractor releases the City form any liability whatsoever to pay for any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon provided without said blanket release.

3.15. DELIVERY

Contractor must not make any deliveries of Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon without an approved City of Chicago purchase order release issued by the appropriate department. Upon receipt of a purchase order release, deliveries of the proposed/requested Lignite C o a I Based Powdered Activated Carbon must be made at no charge F.O.B., City of Chicago, Department of Water, Jardine Water Purification Plant 1000 East Ohio Street, Chicago, IL 60611 and the South Water Purification Plant, 3300 East Cheltenham Place, Chicago IL 60649or to any point within the City, regardless of the purchase order release amount.

Deliveries of Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon must be made within five (5) calendar days of issuance of a Purchase Order Release between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 3:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding Saturday, Sunday

3.16. INSPECTION UPON DELIVERY

Upon delivery of the specified Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, the City will conduct an in-depth initial visual examination solely for the purpose of identifying gross and obvious damage. The Contractor's representative may be present for the initial examinations.

If defects or omissions are discovered during the inspection, the City may:

- (i) Refuse acceptance of any/all units.
- (ii) Arrange with the Contractor to make corrections.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 28 of 55

(iii) Require the Contractor to remove any/all units from the City's premises at its own cost to make the necessary corrections.

Any/all labor and materials which may be required to correct non-compliant aspects of all items must be provided by the Contractor in a prompt manner, at no cost to the City. The "promptness" of corrective actions will be established by the City based upon the quantity and scope of the corrections required.

3.17. INVOICES

This contract is subject to Centralized Invoice Processing ("CIP"). Invoices must be submitted directly to the Comptroller's office by US Postal Service mail to the following address:

INVOICES
City of Chicago, Office of the City Comptroller
33 N. LaSalle St., Room 700
Chicago, IL 60602

OR

Via email to: INVOICES@cityofchicago.org with the word INVOICE in the subject line.

All invoices must be signed, marked "original," and include the following information or payment will be delayed:

- Invoice number and date
- Contract/Purchase Order number
- Blanket Release number (if applicable)
- Vendor name and/or number
- Remittance address
- Name of City Department that ordered the goods or services
- Name and phone number of your contact at the ordering department
- Invoice quantities, commodity codes, description of deliverable(s)
- Amount due
- Receipt number (provided by the ordering department after delivery of goods/services)

Invoice quantities, service description, unit of measure, pricing and/or catalog information must correspond to the terms of the Bid Page(s).

If applicable, if invoicing Price List/Catalog items, indicate Price List/Catalog number, item number, Price List/Catalog date, and Price List/Catalog page number on the invoice.

Invoices for over-shipments or items with price/wage escalations will be rejected unless the Contract includes a provision for such an adjustment.

Freight, handling and shipping costs are not to be invoiced; deliveries are to be made F.O.B., City of Chicago. As stated the City of Chicago is exempt from paying State of Illinois sales tax and Federal excise taxes on purchases.

If required, Subcontractor Payment Certification forms must be mailed to the department that ordered the goods or services.

3.18. ELECTRONIC ORDERING AND INVOICES

The Contractor will cooperate in good faith with the City in implementing electronic ordering and invoicing, including but not limited to purchase orders, releases and invoices. Contractor will accept electronic purchase orders and releases

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 29 of 55

upon request of the Chief Procurement Officer. Contractor will provide the City electronic copies of invoices and other electronic documents upon request. The electronic ordering and invoice documents shall be in a format specified by the City and transmitted by an electronic means specified by the City. Such electronic means may include, but are not limited to, disks, e-mail, EDI, FTP, web sites, and third party electronic services. The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to change the document format and/or the means of transmission upon written notice to the Contractor. Contractor shall ensure that the essential information, as determined by the Chief Procurement Officer, in the electronic document, corresponds to that information submitted by the Contractor in its paper documents.

The electronic documents shall be in addition to paper documents required by this contract, however, by written notice to the Contractor, the Chief Procurement Officer may deem any or all of the electronic ordering and invoice documents the official documents and/or eliminate the requirement for paper ordering and invoice documents.

3.19. PAYMENT

The City will process payment within sixty (60) calendar days after receipt and acceptance of invoices and Subcontractor Payment Certification forms completed in accordance with the terms herein, and all supporting documentation necessary for the City to verify delivery and acceptance of the Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon provided under this Contract.

The City will not be obligated to pay for any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon that was not ordered with a purchase order release or that are non-compliant with the terms and conditions of these specifications. Any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon which fail tests and/or inspections are subject to replacement at the cost of the Contractor.

The City will not be obligated to pay for any Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon if it is noncompliant with the terms and conditions of these Specifications.

3.20. PRICE ESCALATION

Price escalation will be considered by the Chief Procurement Officer when the Contractor can show cause substantiating the need for an increase. The Contractor will be required to furnish a certified statement, indexes and affidavit which states that the increase represents the costs for materials only and in no way represents an increase for the firms profits, labor or other overhead. The Contractor must justify their request for an increase by submitting evidence from the manufacturer which details the pricing changes, the effective date for the change and any other information requested by the Chief Procurement Officer to verify the price change.

If approved by the Chief Procurement Officer, a properly executed contract modification must be signed by the Contractor and the City to reflect the price change and the effective date for the change. Original bid prices are in effect until the modification has been fully executed and released to the Contractor unless the modification specifies an effective date for the agreed upon price change.

Any Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon delivered by the Contractor at the new price, without a properly executed contract modification signed by the Chief Procurement Officer, is made at the Contractor's risk. Consequently, in the event that such modification is not executed by the City, the Contractor hereby releases the City from any liability whatsoever to pay for delivered Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon at the new price prior to the Contractor's receipt of the fully signed modification.

The Chief Procurement Officer reserves the right to seek competitive pricing information on said Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon from other suppliers and/or manufacturers and to procure such Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon in a manner which serves the best interest of the City.

Prices are not subject to change for the initial twelve (12) months of the contract period. A minimum period of twelve (12) months must elapse between escalation requests.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 30 of 55

3.21. Department of Water Management Security

For purposes of this section, "employee" refers to any individual employed or engaged by Contractor or by any Subcontractor. If the Contractor, or any employee, in the performance of this Contract, has or will have access to a Department of Water Management (DOWM) facility, the City may conduct such background and employment checks, including criminal history record checks and work permit documentation, as the Commissioner of the Department of Water Management and the City may deem necessary, on the Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any of their respective employees. The Commissioner of the Department of Water Management has the right to require the Contractor to supply or provide access to any additional information the Commissioner deems relevant. Before beginning work on the project, Contractor must:

- 1) Provide the City with a list of all employees requiring access to enable the City to conduct such background and employment checks;
- 2) Deliver to the City consent forms signed by all employees who will work on the project consenting to the City's and the Contractor's performance of the background checks described in this Section; and
- 3) Deliver to the City consent forms signed by all employees who will require access to the DOWM facility consenting to the searches described in this Section.

The Commissioner may preclude Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any employee from performing work on the project. Further, the Contractor must immediately report any information to the Commissioner relating to any threat to DOWM infrastructure or facilities or the water supply of the City and must fully cooperate with the City and all governmental entities investigating the threat. The Contractor must, notwithstanding anything contained in the Contract Documents to the contrary, at no additional cost to the City, adhere, and cause its Subcontractors to adhere, to any security and safety guidelines developed by the City and furnished to the Contractor from time to time during the term of the Contract and any extensions of it.

Each employee whom Contractor wishes to have access to a DOWM facility must submit a signed, completed "Area Access Application" to the DOWM to receive a DOWM Security Badge. If Contractor wishes a vehicle to have access to a DOWM facility, Contractor must submit a vehicle access application for that vehicle. The applications will solicit such information as the Commissioner may require in his discretion, including name, address, date of birth (and for vehicles, driver's license and appropriate stickers). The Contractor is responsible for requesting and completing these forms for each employee who will be working at DOWM facilities and all vehicles to be used on the job site. The Commissioner may grant or deny the application in his sole discretion. The Contractor must make available to the Commissioner, within one (1) day of request, the personnel file of any employee who will be working on the project.

At the Commissioner's request, the Contractor and Subcontractor must maintain an employment history of employees going back five years from the date Contractor began Work or Services on the project. If requested, Contractor must certify that it has verified the employment history as required on the form designated by the Commissioner. Contractor must provide the City, at its request, a copy of the employment history for each employee. Employment history is subject to audit by the City.

DOWM Security Badges and Vehicle Permits will only be issued based upon properly completed Area Access Application Forms. Employees or vehicles without proper credentials will not be allowed on DOWM property.

The following rules related to Security Badges and Vehicle Permits must be adhered to:

- 1) Each employee must wear and display the DOWM Security Badge issued to that employee on his or her outer apparel at all times.
- 2) At the sole discretion of the Commissioner and law enforcement officials, including but not limited to the Chicago Police Department, Cook County Sheriffs Office, Illinois State Police or any other municipal,

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 31 of 55

state or federal law enforcement agency, all vehicles (and their contents) are subject to interior and/or exterior inspection entering or exiting DOWM facilities, and all employees and other individuals entering or exiting DOWM facilities are subject to searches. Vehicles may not contain any materials other than those needed for the project. The Commissioner may deny access to any vehicle or individual in his sole discretion.

- 3) All individuals operating a vehicle on DOWM property must be familiar and comply with motor driving regulations and procedures of the State of Illinois and the City of Chicago. The operator must be in possession of a valid, state-issued Motor Vehicle Operator's Driver License.
- 4) All required City stickers and State Vehicle Inspection stickers must be valid.
- 5) Individuals must remain within their assigned area and haul routes unless otherwise instructed by the City.
- 6) Access to the Work sites will be as shown or designated on the Contract Documents Drawings or determined by the Commissioner. The Commissioner may deny access when, in his sole discretion, the vehicle or individual poses some security risk to DOWM.

Whenever the Contractor receives permission to enter DOWM property in areas that are exit/entrance points not secured by the City, the Contractor may be required to provide gates that comply with DOWM design and construction standards. Contractor must provide a licensed and bonded security guard, subject to the Commissioner's approval and armed as deemed necessary by the Commissioner, at the gates when the gates are in use. DOWM Security will provide the locks. Failure to provide and maintain the necessary security will result in an immediate closure by DOWM personnel of the point of access.

Stockpiling materials and parking of equipment or vehicles near DOWM security fencing is prohibited.

Any security fencing, gates, or alarms damaged by the Contractor or its Subcontractors must be manned by a licensed and bonded security guard of the Contractor at Contractor's expense until the damaged items are restored. Contractor must restored them to their original condition within an eight (8) hour period from the time of notice given by the Commissioner.

Temporary removal of any security fencing, gate or alarm to permit construction must be approved by the Commissioner, and Contractor must man the site by a licensed and bonded security guard, approved by and armed as deemed necessary by the Commissioner, at Contractor's expense, on a twenty-four (24) hour basis during the period of temporary removal. Contractor must restore the items removed to their original condition when construction is completed.

Unauthorized hazardous or illegal materials, including but not limited to hazardous materials as defined in 49 C.F.R. Parts 100-185 (e.g. explosives, oxidizers, radiological materials, infectious materials), contraband, firearms and other weapons, illegal drugs and drug paraphernalia, may not be taken on DOWM property. Alcoholic beverages are also prohibited.

All employees and vehicles working within DOWM facilities must be properly identified. All vehicles and personnel passes will be issued to the Contractor by the Commissioner, as required. Contractor, Subcontractors, and employees must return identification material to the Commissioner upon completion of their respective work within the Project, and in all cases, the Contractor must return all identification material to the Commissioner after completion of the Project. Final Contract Payment will not be made until all passes issued have been returned to DOWM Security.

3.22. ACCEPTANCE

It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto, that the initial acceptance of any delivery will not be considered as a waiver of any provision of these Specifications and will not relieve the Contractor of its obligation to supply satisfactory Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon which conform to the Specifications, as shown by any test or inspections for which provisions are herein otherwise made.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 32 of 55

3.23. DEEMED INCLUSION

Provisions required by law, ordinances, rules, regulations, or executive orders to be inserted in the Contract are deemed inserted in the Contract whether or not they appear in the Contract or, upon application by either party, the Contract will be amended to make the insertion; however, in no event will the failure to insert the provisions before or after the Contract is signed prevent its enforcement.

3.24. NON-APPROPRIATION

If no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in any fiscal period of the City for payments to be made under this Contract, then the City will notify the Contractor of that occurrence and this contract will terminate on the earlier of the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriated for payment under this contract are exhausted. No payments will be made to the Contractor under this Contract beyond those amounts appropriated and budgeted by the City to fund payments under this Contract.

3.25. CONFIDENTIALITY

- 1. Unless expressly agreed otherwise by the Commissioner in writing, all Deliverables (including but not limited to all drawings, documents, specifications, plans, reports, statistics and data) and any other information in any form prepared by or provided to Contractor in connection with this Agreement (collectively, "Project Data") are property of the City and are confidential. Contractor agrees that, except as specifically authorized by the Commissioner in writing or as may be required by law, Project Data will be made available only to the Commissioner, his designees, and, on a need-to-know basis, Contractor's employees and subcontractors. Contractor acknowledges that Project Data may contain information vital to the security of the airport. If Contractor fails to comply with this section, Contractor is liable for the reasonable costs of actions taken by the City, the airlines, the Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA"), or the Transportation Security Administration ("TSA") that the applicable entity, in its sole discretion, determines to be necessary as a result, including without limitation the design and construction of improvements, procurement and installation of security devices, and posting of guards.
- 2. Except as authorized in writing by the Commissioner, Contractor must not issue any publicity news releases or grant press interviews, and except as may be required by law during or after the performance of this Agreement, disseminate any information regarding its Services or the project to which the Services pertain.
- If Contractor is presented with a subpoena or a request by an administrative agency regarding any Project Data which may be in Contractor's possession by reason of this Agreement, Contractor must immediately give notice to the Commissioner and the Corporation Counsel for the City with the understanding that the City will have the opportunity to contest such process by any means available to it before any Project Data are submitted to the court, administrative agency, or other third party. Contractor, however, is not obligated to withhold the delivery beyond the time ordered by the court or administrative agency, unless the subpoena or request is quashed or the time to produce is otherwise extended.

3.26. TERMINATION

The City may terminate this contract or all or any portion of the contract, at any time by a notice in writing from the City to the Contractor. The City will give notice to the Contractor. The effective date of termination will be the date the notice is received by the Contractor or the date stated in the notice, whichever is later. If the City elects to terminate the contract in full, all services to be provided under it must cease and all materials that may have been accumulated in performing this contract whether completed or in the process, must be delivered to the City within ten (10) calendar days after the effective date stated in the notice.

After the notice is received, the Contractor must restrict its activities, and those of its subcontractors to winding down any activities previously begun. No costs incurred after the effective date of the termination are allowed. Payment for any services actually and satisfactorily performed before the effective date of the termination is on the same basis as set forth

in the Payment clause and as outlined in the Proposal page, but if any compensation is described or provided for on the basis of a period longer than ten (10) calendar days, then the compensation must be prorated accordingly. No amount of compensation, however, is permitted for anticipated profits on unperformed services. The payment so made to the Contractor is in full settlement for all services satisfactorily performed under this contract. If Contractor disputes the amount of compensation determined by the City to be due Contractor, then the Contractor must initiate dispute settlement procedures in accordance with the Disputes provision in the General Conditions.

If the City's election to terminate this contract for default pursuant to the Default provision in the General Conditions is determined in a court of competent jurisdiction to have been wrongful, then in that case the termination is to be deemed to be an early termination pursuant to this Termination provision.

3.27. CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE

The Contractor must provide and maintain at Contractor's own expense, until Contract completion and during the time period following completion if Contractor is required to return and perform any additional work, the insurance coverages and requirements specified below, insuring all operations related to the Contract.

A. INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

1) Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than \$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage liability. Coverages must include the following: All premises and operations, products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense, and contractual liability (with no limitation endorsement). The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arising directly or indirectly from the work.

2) Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law covering all employees who are to provide work under this Contract and Employers Liability coverage with limits of not less than \$500,000 each accident, illness, or disease.

3) Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with work to be performed, the Contractor must provide Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis.

B. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor must furnish the City of Chicago, Department of Procurement Services, City Hall, Room 403, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Contract, and Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an expiration or renewal date occurring during the term of this Contract. The Contractor must submit evidence of insurance on the City of Chicago Insurance Certificate Form (copy attached) or equivalent prior to Contract award. The City may require additional insured's depending on the delivery location. The receipt of any certificate does not constitute agreement by the City that the insurance requirements in the Contract have been fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with all Contract requirements. The failure of the City to obtain certificates or other insurance evidence from Contractor is not a waiver by the City of any requirements for the Contractor to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. The Contractor must advise all insurers of the Contract provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not relieve Contractor of the obligation to provide insurance as specified herein. Nonfulfillment of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Contract, and the City retains the right to stop work until proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Contract may be terminated.

The insurance must provide for sixty (60) days prior written notice to be given to the City in the event coverage is substantially changed, canceled, or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by Contractor.

The Contractor hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of subrogation against the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents, or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Contractor in no way limit the Contractor's liabilities and responsibilities specified within the Contract or by law.

Any insurance or self insurance programs maintained by the City of Chicago do not contribute with insurance provided by the Contractor under the Contract.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 35 of 55

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the indemnification language in this Contract or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this Contract given as a matter of law.

If Contractor is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name the joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

The Contractor must require all subcontractors to provide the insurance required herein, or Contractor may provide the coverages for subcontractors. All subcontractors are subject to the same insurance requirements of Contractor unless otherwise specified in this Contract.

If Contractor or subcontractor desires additional coverages, the party desiring the additional coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

The City of Chicago Risk Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these requirements.

Address:		Specification Number: 92221A RFQ Number: 3768		
(Number ar	d Street)	Project	t Description: Lignite Co	oal Based Powered Activated Carbon
(City) (State)	(ZIP)		Purchase Order Nur	mber:
Description of Operation/Location	, ,			
The insurance policies and endorsements covering the operation described within the of cancellation, non-renewal or material change to the City of Chicago at the addre entered into with the named insured, and i agreement with the named insured:	e Contract involving the name cange involving the indicated as shown on this Certificate	ned insured and the d policies, the issue e. This certificate is	e City of Chicago. The Cer will provide at least sines. It is is a contract to the City of Ch	Certificate issuer agrees that in the event xty (60) days prior written notice of such licago in consideration of the Contract
Type of Insurance	Insurer Name	Policy Number	Expiration Date	Limits of Liability All Limits in Thousands
General Liability [] Claims made [] Occurrence [] Premises-Operations [] Explosion/Collapse Underground [] Products/Completed-Operations [] Blanket Contractual [] Broad Form Property Damage [] Independent Contractors [] Personal Injury [] Pollution				CSL Per Occurrence \$ General Aggregate \$ Products/Completed Operations Aggregate \$
Automobile Liability				CSL Per Occurrence \$
[] Excess Liability [] Umbrella Liability				Each Occurrence \$
Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability				Statutory/Illinois Employers Liability \$
Builders Risk/Course of Construction				Amount of Contract
Professional Liability				\$
Owner Contractors Protective				\$
Other				\$
of Chicago is an additional insured as resp from the City of Chicago." b) The General, Automobile and Exnamed insured and the City. c) Workers Compensation and Pro	ects operations and activition cess/Umbrella Liability Polition perty Insurers shall waive a the City does not constitute	es of, or on behalf icies described pro ill rights of subroga agreement by the	of the named insured, p vide for severability of In tion against the City of 0 City that the insurance i	nterest (cross liability) applicable to the Chicago.
Name and Address of Certificate Holder a Certificate Holder/Additional Insured	nd Recipient of Notice	-		
City of Chicago Department of Procurement Services 121 N. LaSalle St., #403		Address:		
Chicago, IL 60602		Telephone:		

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 37 of 55

__ Attention:

ZIP Code: _

Address: _

4. DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS

4.1. SCOPE

The Contractor must furnish and deliver Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon as specified, proposed and accepted F.O.B., City of Chicago, Department of Water Management, in accordance with all the terms and conditions of this specification.

4.2. INTENT

The Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon is utilized by the Department of Water Management for Potable Water Treatment, product must have NSF standard 61 approval.

4.3. AUTHORIZED DEALER / DISTRIBUTOR

The Contractor must be the manufacturer or an authorized dealer or distributor of the proposed Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon. **The Contractor must provide documentation of same with its bid.** Further, the Contractor must be capable of furnishing original product warranty and manufacturer's related services such as product information, product recall notices, etc. Proof of ability to transfer product warranties to the City of Chicago must be submitted with bid documents, if applicable.

4.4. LIGNITE COAL BASED POWDERED ACTIVATED CARBON

MATERIAL

The carbon must be Powdered Activated Carbon originating from virgin lignite coal mined in the United States of a grad in extensive use for the removal of taste and odor from water.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS

MOISTURE

The moisture content of the powdered activated carbon must not exceed eight percent (8%), by weight.

ASH CONTENT

The total ASH Content must not exceed forty percent (40), by weight.

PARTICLE-SIZE DISTRIBUTION

The carbon will be ground to standard water quality fineness: not less than ninety-nine percent (99%) of the activated carbon must pass a No. 100 sieve, not less than ninety-five percent (95%) must pass a No. 200 sieve, and not less than ninety percent (90%) must pass a No. 325 sieve.

CARBON STRUCTURE

The minimum surface area of the activated carbon must be 500 m²/g, expressed as meters squared per gram. The mean (average) pore radius of the activated carbon, measured in Angstroms, will be in the range of 28-33.

ADSORPTIVE CAPACITY MODIFIED. PHENOL VALUE

The modified phenol value of the powdered activated carbon must be 15 to 38 grams per liter or ppm.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 38 of 55

ADDITIONAL ADSORPTIVE CAPACITIES IODINE NUMBER

The iodine number of the powdered activated carbon must not be less than 500 mg/g. This number is expressed in milligrams of iodine adsorbed per gram of activated carbon used.

TANNIN VALUE

The tannin value of the powdered activated carbon must not exceed 350 mg/L or ppm.

IMPURITIES

The powdered activated carbon supplied must not contain substances in quantities capable of producing deleterious or injurious effects on the health of those consuming water that has been properly treated with powdered activated carbon.

4.5. TESTING/SAMPLES

TEST SAMPLES

The samples will be such as to be representative of the truckload shipment. One (1) sample will be used for testing and the other will be sent to the Contractor if he so requests, and the Contractor will pay the cost of the container and the cost of shipping the sample.

METHOD OF TESTING

The determination of the moisture content of the carbon will: be made by drying a portion of the sample in an oven at 110" Centigrade for approximately two.(2) hours or until constant weight is reached. The moisture content will be expressed in percent of the dry sample.

To test for the Ash Content, a known quantity of dry activated carbon is ground up into powder and heated in an oven until all the carbon has been burnt off. The weight of the remaining ash will be expressed as a percentage of the original weight of the activated carbon. The standard test method will be ASTM D-2866.

The City of Chicago in determining the Particle-Size Distribution, Modified Phenol Value, and Tannin Value will use the methods according to AWWA standards effective December 1, 1996, B-600-96.

Modified Phenol Value as used in these specifications is defined as the concentration of activated carbon in grams per liter, required to reduce a standard phenol concentration by 90%; e.g. from 200 mg/L to 20mg/L.

Tannin Value as used in these specifications is defined as the concentration of activated carbon in milligrams per liter 'required to reduce the standard tannic acid concentration from 20 mg/L to 2 mg/L.

lodine Number as used in these specifications is defined as the amount (expressed as milligrams) of iodine adsorbed per gram of activated carbon used. The standard test method will be: ASTM D4607.

Should any samples fail to conform to the requirements herein set forth, the Contractor will be notified within fifteen (15) days and the cause for the rejection will be stated. If the Contractor desires a retest, he will notify the Chief Procurement Officer within five (5) days. A portion of the sample taken by the City will then be forwarded for retest at a laboratory agreed upon by both parties. The results of the retest may be accepted as final. If the result of the tests obtained by the aforementioned neutral laboratory show the carbon not to conform with these specifications, the cost of the retest will be borne by the Contractor.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 39 of 55

4.6. REJECTION

If any material delivered fails to meet the specification requirements, the entire contents of the load will be subject to rejection and must be removed immediately from the filtration plant by the Contractor when so ordered by the Commissioner or authorized designee, provided disposition of rejected material cannot be effected as hereinafter outlined.

4.7. DISOSITION OF REJECTED MATERIAL

Material subject to rejection may be retained for use by the City, if an agreement can be reached between the Commissioner and the Contractor on a price for the rejected material based on the adsorptive capacity of the rejected material.

4.8. INVENTORY/LEAD TIME

The Contractor must maintain an inventory of sufficient diversity and quantity as to ensure the delivery of any Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon listed in the Proposal, which is ordered by the City within five (5) days after receipt of, a City departments order. In lieu of the inventory, the Contractor must be able to arrange such prompt delivery.

Repeated failures of the Contractor to meet the above stated delivery requirements may be used by the City as grounds for the termination of this Contract, and may further affect the Contractor's eligibility for future Contract awards.

The Contractor's compliance with these requirements will be determined by the Chief Procurement Officer, whose decision will be binding.

4.9. STANDARD LIGNITE COAL BASED POWDERED ACTIVATED CARBON

Experimental Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon will not be acceptable. Lignite Coal Based Powdered Activated Carbon which are not produced by regular production methods and/or which have not been offered for sale to the public through accepted industry trade channels for at least one (1) year will be considered experimental. The City reserves the right to waive or take exception to this requirement if it be to the City's advantage or best interests.

The Contractor must furnish evidence upon request that the item to be furnished has been commercially available through that manufacturer to the trade for a period of not less than one (1) year and has been fully field tested to the satisfaction of the Chief Procurement Officer.

4.10. BACK ORDERS

Electronic or written notification of backordered items must be sent immediately to the Department. For any back orders that cannot be filled within ten (10) business days, the Department will have the option of accepting or canceling the backorder or the Department may submit a request for a substitute item. The City is not to be charged for expenses incurred due to the cancellation of backorders.

4.11. MISSHIPMENTS/DEFECTIVE MERCHANDISE

The Contractor will be responsible for any incorrect or damaged shipments and defective merchandise. The Contractor must make arrangements with their common carrier or company personnel to pick-up any unacceptable Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon within forty-eight (48) hours of notification.

The Contractor must replace the incorrect, damaged or defective merchandise or issue a credit within seven (7) business days of the return. If the replacement merchandise or a credit is not received within seven (7) business days, the City will deduct the amount of the return from any outstanding invoice at the time of payment.

The City of Chicago will not be subject to restocking charges due to Contractor error.

4.12. EXCEPTIONS

Any deviations from these specifications must be noted on the Proposal Page or pages attached thereto, with the exact nature of the change outlined in sufficient detail. The reason for which deviations were made should also follow if not self-explanatory. Failure of a bidder to comply with the terms of this paragraph may be cause for rejection.

The City reserves the right to disqualify bids which do not completely meet outlined specifications. The impact of exceptions to the specification will be evaluated by the City in determining its need.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 41 of 55

5. FMPS PROPOSAL PAGES

Catalog RFQ - No Group Lines City of Chicago

RFQ Header Information

Please Respond By 8/31/2011

RFQ Number 3768

Ship To Location D06

For More Information Please Contact TOYLA RICE

Your Quote is Effective as of 8/31/2011

Special Instructions

RFQ Description Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon

RFQ Status Active

Bid/Proposal pricing for all commodity and/or service line items must be based on the standard unit of measure indicated below. Pricing on alternate units of measure may not be accepted. Unit costs must be limited to three decimal places. Each quote must be signed and unit price, extended price and total price must be typed or written in ink.

Quotes on "or equal" items must be identified as "alternate" to specified item on the comment line. If quoting an alternate, indicate manufacturer name, model/part/catalog number and attach descriptive literature. Alternate items may not be accepted. Any exceptions to items specified or other terms must be clearly indicated on the bid.

RFQ Header Details

Contract Type COMMODITIES

Target Market NO

Advertise Date 8/19/2011

WEB BID Edit Rules ALL

Specification 92221A Procurement Type BID **Bid Deposit Required NO**

Compliance Officer

Compliance Type Description

					Percentage Type De	Desc	Re	Required %				
N _o C	No Compliance Plan Required	Plan Requi	red		None			0.00%				
Line N	Line Line Type	ltem	Category		Commodity Desc	MOO	Estimated Usage	UOM Price	Discount or Markup %	Extended Price	Catalog # / ID, Date and Mfr	Comments
-	Goods	8850862417 88508	88508	ACTIVATE LIGNITE CO WATER - B	ACTIVATED CARBON, POWDERED, LIGNITE COAL BASED, FOR USE IN WATER - BULK IN TRUCKLOTS	Ton	1363	40	(N/A)	G	(N/A)	

Total Price \$

Page 6 of 6 Spec# 92221A

Run Time: 08/16/11 03:12:01

6. ADDITIONAL PROPOSAL INFORMATION

Bidder is required to complete the appropriate information for the Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon proposed herein, on the bid data pages. Failure to fill out all of the information requested may, at the discretion of the Chief Procurement Officer, result in the bidder being deemed non-responsive. The City will use the information contained in the bid data sheets, and elsewhere in the bid, to evaluate the responsiveness of the bidder.

6.1. PERSON TO CONTACT REGARDING THIS	S BID
NAME:	PHONE:
TITLE:	FAX:
COMPANY:	E-MAIL:
ADDRESS:	
6.2. MANUFACTURER, MANUFACTUER'S DIS	TRIBUTOR/SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE
INDICATE IF YOU ARE:	
MANUFACTURER MANUFACTURER'S EXCLUSIVE DI MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZED I MANUFACTURER'S AUTHORIZED S	
manufacturer's authorized service representa	facturer's distributor, manufacture's service representative, ative; bidder is to provide the name, address and phone number in the manufacturer verifying status, with the bid.
6.3. LOCATION OF FACILITY WHERE INVENT	ORY IS MAINTAINED:
ADDRESS:	
PHONE: ()	
6.4. COMMENTS (EXPLAIN):	
_	

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 43 of 55

7. AFFIDAVIT OF CHICAGO BUSINESS

If this is a competitively bid Contract, a Chicago business preference may be applicable. Failure to complete and submit this form with the bid at the time of Bid Opening will be cause for rejection of the bid for being non-responsive.

1.	() Yes () No	al Conditions, Chicago Business Preference language?
2.	Street address of principal place of business:	
3.	How many persons are currently employed by bidder?	
4.	How many of bidder's current employees work at City of	of Chicago locations?
5.	Is bidder subject to City of Chicago taxes? () Yes () No	
	Signed:	
	Printed Name:	
	Title:	
Count	y of	<u> </u>
State	of	<u>—</u>
Ackno	wledged under oath on (date)	<u> </u>
Before	e me by	<u> </u>
As (titl	e)	<u> </u>
of (firn	n)	<u> </u>
Notar	ry Public Signature:	
(Seal)	
Comr	mission	Expires:

8. CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT (EDS)

8.1. ONLINE EDS FILING REQUIRED PRIOR TO BID OPENING

The Proposer must prepare an online EDS prior to the bid opening date.

A PROPOSER THAT DOES NOT PREPARE AN ELECTRONIC EDS PRIOR TO THE BID OPENING WILL BE FOUND NON-RESPONSIVE AND ITS BID WILL BE REJECTED.

NOTE:

- Filing an "EDS Information Update" does NOT satisfy the requirement to file an electronic EDS prior to bid opening.
- Filing an EDS in a hard copy or paper copy form does **NOT** satisfy the requirement to file an electronic EDS prior to bid opening.
- Filing an EDS for another mater (different bid, contract, etc.) does **NOT** satisfy the requirement to file an electronic EDS prior to bid opening.

When completing the online EDS, please choose the Department of Procurement Services as the City agency or department that is requesting the EDS.

8.2. ONLINE EDS WEB LINK

The web link for the Online EDS is https://webapps.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb

8.3. ONLINE EDS NUMBER

Upon completion of the online EDS submission process, the Proposer will be provided an EDS number. Bidders should provide this number here:

EDS Number:
EDS Number:

8.4. ONLINE EDS CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Upon completion of the online submission process, the Proposer will be able to print a hard copy Certificate of Filing. The Proposer should submit the signed Certificate of Filing with its bid.

Please insert your Certification of Filing following this page.

A Proposer that does not include a signed Certificate of Filing with its bid must provide it upon the request of the Chief Procurement Officer.

8.5. PREPARATION CHECKLIST FOR REGISTRATION

To expedite and ease your registration process, we recommend that you collect the following information prior to registering for an Online EDS user account:

1.	Invitation number, if you were provided an invitation number.
2.	EDS document from previous years, if available.
3.	Email address to correspond with the Online EDS system.
-	

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 45 of 55

	4.	Company Information:
	a.	Legal Name
	– b.	FEIN/SSN
	- с.	City of Chicago Vendor Number, if available.
	_ d. your I	Address and phone number information that you would like to appear on EDS documents.
	•	EDS Captain. Check for an EDS Captain in your company - this maybe the on that usually submits EDS for your company, or the first person that registers our company.
EPARATI	- ON CHECKLIS	ST FOR EDS SUBMISSION
	e and ease you	r EDS submission, we recommend that you collect the following information prior to tion online.
tems #1 th	rough #7 are ne	eded for both EDS information updates and contract related EDS documents:
	_ Invitation num	ber, if you were provided with an invitation number.
	_ Site address the	hat is specific to this EDS.
	_ Contact that is	s responsible for this EDS.
	_ EDS documer	nt from previous years, if available.
	Ownership str	ucture, and if applicable, owners' company information:
	_ % of ownershi	р
	_ Legal Name	
	_ FEIN/SSN	
	_ City of Chicag	o Vendor Number, if available.
	Address	
	List of director	s, officers, titleholders, etc. (if applicable).
	_ For partnershi	ps/LLC/LLP/Joint ventures, etc.; List of controlling parties (if applicable).
Items #8 ar	nd #9 are needed	d ONLY for contract related EDS documents:
	Contract relate	ed information (if applicable):
	_ City of Chicag	o contract package
	_ Cover page of	City of Chicago bid/solicitation package
	_ If EDS is relate	ed to a mod, then cover page of your current contract with the City.
	List of subcon	tractors and retained parties:

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 46 of 55

 Name
 Address
Fees – Estimated or paid

8.7. EDS FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Q: Where do I file?

A: The web link for the Online EDS is https://webapps.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb

Q: How do I get help?

A: If there is a question mark on a page or next to a field, click on the question mark for help filling out the page or field. You may also consult the User Manual and the Training Videos available on the left menu.

Q: Why do I have to submit an EDS?

A: The Economic Disclosure Statement (EDS) is required of applicants making an application to the City for action requiring City Council, City department or other City agency approval. For example, all bidders seeking a City contract are required to submit an EDS. Through the EDS, applicants make disclosures required by State law and City ordinances and certify compliance with various laws and ordinances. An EDS is also required of certain parties related to the applicant, such as owners and controlling parties.

Q: Who is the Applicant?

A: "Applicant" means any entity or person making an application to the City for action requiring City Council or other City agency approval. The applicant does not include owners and parent companies.

Q: Who is the Disclosing Party?

A: "Disclosing Party" means any entity or person submitting an EDS. This includes owners and parent companies.

Q: What is an entity or legal entity?

A: "Entity" or 'Legal Entity" means a legal entity (for example, a corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or trust).

Q: What is a person for purposes of the EDS?

A: "Person" means a human being.

Q: Who must submit an EDS?

A. An EDS must be submitted in any of the following three circumstances:

An Applicant must always file this EDS. If the Applicant is a legal entity, state the full name of that legal entity. If the Applicant is a person acting on his/her own behalf, state **Applicants:**

his/her name.

Entities holding an interest:

Whenever a legal entity has a beneficial interest (E. G. direct or indirect ownership) of more than 7.5% in the Applicant, each such legal entity must file an EDS on its own behalf.

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 47 of 55

Controlling entities:

Whenever a Disclosing Party is a general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership or joint venture that has a general partner, managing member, manager or other entity that can control the day-to-day management of the Disclosing Party, that entity must also file an EDS on its own behalf. Each entity with a beneficial interest of more than 7.5% in the controlling entity must also file an EDS on its own behalf.

Q: What information is needed to submit an EDS?

A: The information contained in the Preparation Checklist for EDS submission.

Q: I don't have a user ID & password. Can I still submit an Online EDS?

A: No. You must register and create a user ID and password before submitting an Online EDS.

Q: What information is needed to request a user ID & password for Online EDS?

A: The information contained in the Preparation Checklist for Registration is needed to request a login for the Online EDS.

Q: I already have a username and password from another City web site (City Web Portal, Department of Construction and Permits, Department of Consumer Services, etc.). Can I log-in the Online EDS with that account?

A: Usually not. The Online EDS uses a user ID and password system that is shared by the Public Vehicle Advertising and Water Payment web sites. You may use a username and password from those sites by answering "Yes" to "Is this an existing City of Chicago user ID?" when registering. Other usernames and passwords will not be automatically recognized. However, you may choose to create an identical username for the Online EDS if it is not already taken.

Q: I don't have an email address. How do I submit an Online EDS?

A: You cannot get an account to submit an online EDS without an email address. If you need an e-mail address, we suggest that you use a free internet email provider such as www.hotmail.com or www.yahoo.com or rnail.google.com to open an account. The City does not endorse any particular free internet email provider. Public computers are available at all Chicago Public Library branches.

Q: I forgot my user ID. Can I register again?

A: No. If you are the EDS Captain of your organization, please contact the Department of Procurement Services at 312-744-4900. If you are an EDS team member, contact your EDS Captain, who can look up your user ID.

Q: Who is the EDS Captain?

A: The EDS Captain is a person who performs certain administrative functions for an organization which files an EDS. Each organization registered with the Online EDS has at least one EDS Captain. There may be cocaptains, who are all equal. EDS Captains approve new users, change contact information for an organization, and de-active accounts of employees who have left the organization. Please see the User Manual for more information.

Q: Why do we need EDS Captains?

A: The Online EDS is designed to be a self-service web application which allows those doing or seeking to do business with the City to perform as many routine functions as possible without City intervention. Because many organizations have multiple staff filing an EDS, the EDS Captain role allows those organizations to self-manage the contact information and users.

Q: Who is the EDS team?

A: The EDS team for an organization is everyone who is registered to file an EDS on behalf of the organization.

Q: I forgot my password. What should I do?

A: To retrieve a temporary password, click the "Forgot your password?" link on the login page. Enter your user ID that you provided when you registered your account. The system will automatically generate a temporary password and send it to you. When you log-in with your temporary password, you will be asked to create a new password.

Q: How do I complete an Online EDS?

A: Click on "Create New" after logging in. The Online EDS system will walk you through the EDS questions. Please see the User Manual for details.

Q: How do I fill out a Disclosure of Retained Parties?

A: There is no longer a separate Disclosure of Retained Parties filing. After logging in, click on "Create New". Answer (click) "Contract" to "Is this EDS for a contract or an EDS information update?" Click "Fill out EDS", and click on the "Retained Parties" tab. When finished, click on "Ready to Submit."

Q: How do I attach documents?

A: Attachments are discouraged. If at all possible, please provide a concise explanation in the space provided in the online form. Attachments with pages of officers are not acceptable. Names of officers must be typed into the system. If you must provide an attachment for another reason, please send it to your City of Chicago contact (contract administrator or negotiator for procurements) and they will attach it for you. Documents can be sent in PDF (preferred), Word, or paper format.

Q: Who can complete an Economic Disclosure Statement online?

A: Any authorized representative of your business with a user ID and password can complete your EDS online. One person, such as an assistant, can fill in the information and save it, and another person can review and electronically sign the Online EDS.

Q: What are the benefits of filing my Economic Disclosure statement electronically?

A: Filing electronically reduces the chance of filing an incomplete EDS and speeds up the processing of contract awards. A certificate of filing can be printed at the completion of the process and inserted into your bid package. The biggest benefit for those who frequently do business with the City is that after the first EDS, each EDS is much easier to fill out because non-contract specific information is pre-filled from the last submitted EDS.

Q: Will my information be secure?

A: Yes. When making your internet connection to our Web Server, you will connect through a Secure Socket Layer (SSL for short) to the "Online EDS" login page. All information you type will be protected using strong encryption. Within the login page, you will provide us with a user ID, password, and secret question for user authentication, Only you will have knowledge of this unique identification information.

Q: I am filing electronically. How do I sign my EDS?

A: Once you have completed the EDS, you will be prompted to enter your password and answer to your secret question. Together, these will serve as your electronic signature. Although you will also print and physically sign an EDS certification of filing as a notice that your EDS was filed, your EDS is complete as a legal document with only the electronic filing.

Q: My address has changed. How can I update my information?

A: You must be an EDS Captain for your organization to update this. Log-in and click on "Vendor Admin, Site Administration." Select the appropriate site and click edit.

Q: I have more questions. How can I contact the Department of Procurement Services?

A: Please contact the contract administrator or negotiator assigned to your solicitation or contract. You may call DPS at 312-744-4900 between 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM Central Time.

Q: Can I save a partially complete EDS?

A: Yes. Click "Save". To avoid data loss, we recommend you save your work periodically while filling out your EDS.

Q: Do I have to re-type my information each time I submit an EDS?

A: No. The system will remember non-contract specific information from your last submitted EDS for one year. This information will be filled-in for you in your new EDS. You will have an opportunity to correct it if it has changed since your last filing. When you submit your new EDS, the information is saved and the one-year clock begins running anew.

Q: What are the system requirements to use the Online EDS?

A: The following are minimum requirements to use the Online EDS:

- A PDF viewer such as Adobe Reader is installed and your web browser is configured to display PDFs automatically. You may download and install Adobe Reader free at www.adobe.comlproducts/reader/
- Your web browser is set to permit running of JavaScript.
- Your web browser allows cookies to be set for this site. Please note that while we use cookies in the Online EDS, we do not use them to track personally identifiable information, so your privacy is maintained.
- Your monitor resolution is set to a minimum of 1024 x 768.
- While not required to submit an EDS, if you wish to view the training videos, you must have Adobe Flash Plugin version 9 or higher, speakers, and sound. Please note that very old computers may not be able to run Adobe Flash and will not be able to play the training videos. In that case, we encourage you to seek help using the Online EDS Manuals. You may download and install Adobe Flash Plugin free at htty://get.adobe.comiflashplayer

The Online EDS has been tested on Internet Explorer 6.0 and 7.0 and Firefox 2.0 and 3.0 on Windows XP and Mac OS X. Although it should work on other browsers and operating systems, the City of Chicago cannot guarantee compatibility.

9. PROPOSAL EXECUTION PAGES

Commission Expires: ____

9.1. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A CORPORATION

The undersigned, hereby acknowledges having received Specification No. 92221A containing a full set of Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, 1) General Conditions, 2) Special Conditions, 3) Contract Plans or Drawings (i applicable) 4) Detailed Specifications or Scope of Services, Evaluation/Selection Criteria and Submittal Requirements (I RFP/RFQ), 5) Proposal Pages, 6) Certifications and 7) Addenda Numbers (none unless indicated here
contained in the Contract Documents, regardless of whether a complete set thereof is attached to this proposal, excep only to the extent that the corporation has taken express written exception thereto in the sections of this specification designated for that purpose.
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned: (1) warrants that he/she was authorized to submit an EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party on-line, (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in the EDS are true, accurate and complete as of the date the EDS was submitted on-line, and (3) further warrants that, as of the date of submission of this proposal or bid, there have been no changes in circumstances since the date that the EDS was submitted that would render any certification in the EDS false, inaccurate or incomplete.
Further, the undersigned swears, declares or affirms that no disclosures of ownership interests have been withheld and that the information provided herein is current to the best of its knowledge. The undersigned further swears, declares of affirms that it has not entered into an agreement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) to bid affixed price, or any other type of agreement or arrangement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers in restraint of freedom of competition, and that it has not disclosed to any person or entity, excluding its employees, the terms of this proposal or the price named herein.
Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided. Proposals not properly signed will be rejected.
NAME OF CORPORATION:
(Print or Type)
SIGNATURE OF PRESIDENT*:
(Or Authorized Officer)
TITLE OF SIGNATORY:
(Print or Type)
BUSINESS ADDRESS: (Print or Type)
*Note: In the event that this bid (proposal) is signed by other than the President, attach hereto a certified copy of that section of Corporate By-Laws or other authorization, such as a resolution by the Board of Directors, which permits the person to sign the offer for the Corporation. ATTEST:
Corporate Secretary Signature
(Affix Corporate Seal) State of
County of
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of, 20 by
as President (or other authorized officer) and as
Secretary of (Corporation Name).
Notary Public Signature:

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 51 of 55

(Seal)

9.2. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A JOINT VENTURE

limited to, 1) Instructions to Detailed Specifications or S Certifications and 8) Addence terms and conditions contain	Bidders (Proposers), 2) Gener Scope of Services, Evaluation/S la Nos. (none unless indicated had in the Contract Documents, response	al Conditions, 3) Special Condition Selection Criteria and Submittal nere), and a regardless of whether a complete	ng a full set of Contract Documents, including, but not ons, 4) Contract Plans or Drawings (if applicable) 5) Requirements (If RFP/RFQ), 6) Proposal Pages, 7) ffirms that the Joint Venture shall be bound by all the set thereof is attached to this proposal, except only to this specification designated for that purpose.
warrants that all certifications and (3) further warrants that	s and statements contained in the as of the date of submission of	ne EDS are true, accurate and co	an EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party on-line; (2) mplete as of the date the EDS was submitted on-line; been no changes in circumstances since the date that nplete.
information provided therein (proposer) or prospective bid proposal, nor any agreemen	to the best of its knowledge is odder (proposer) or with any other tor arrangement under which ar	current and the undersigned has er person, firm or corporation rela	of ownership interests have been withheld and the not entered into any agreement with any other bidder ating to the price named in this proposal or any other free competition among bidders (proposers) and has ned herein.
Proposals must be submitted	with original signatures in the s	pace provided. Proposals not pro	perly signed will be rejected.
JOINT VENTURE NAME:	(Print or Type)		
	ın assumed name, provide Cou	nty registration number herein ur	nder as provided in the Illinois Revised Statutes 1965
	SSES OF ALL MEMBERS OF Topy of Joint Venture agreement of		pers of the Joint Venture do not sign, indicate authority
SIGNATURE OF Authorized	Party: (Signature)		
TITLE OF SIGNATORY:	(Print or Type)		
BUSINESS ADDRESS:			
	nture Secretary Signature) nt Venture Seal)		
OR `	,		
Address:	(Print or Type)		
Joint Venturer Signature:	(Signature)		
Address:	(Print or Type)		
Joint Venturer Signature:	(Signature)		
Address:	(Print or Type)		
State of	County of	dov of 20 hi	as President (or other authorized
		_ day of, 20 by _ ary of	
Notary Public Signature:		Commission Expires:	(Seal)

Specification: 92221A, Lignite Coal Based Powered Activated Carbon, Page 52 of 55

9.3. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A PARTNERSHIP

State of

Notary Public Signature: _____

County of _____

The undersigned, hereby acknowledges having received Specification No. 92221A containing a full set of Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, 1) General Conditions, 2) Special Conditions, 3) Contract Plans or Drawings (if applicable) 4) Detailed Specifications or Scope of Services, Evaluation/Selection Criteria and Submittal Requirements (If RFP/RFQ), 5) Proposal Pages, 6) Certifications and 7) Addenda Numbers (none unless indicated here) ____, and affirms that the partnership shall be bound by all the terms and conditions contained in the Contract Documents, regardless of whether a complete set thereof is attached to this proposal, except only to the extent that the partnership has taken express written exception thereto in the sections of this specification designated for that purpose. Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned: (1) warrants that he/she was authorized to submit an EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party on-line, (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in the EDS are true, accurate and complete as of the date the EDS was submitted on-line, and (3) further warrants that, as of the date of submission of this proposal or bid, there have been no changes in circumstances since the date that the EDS was submitted that would render any certification in the EDS false, inaccurate or incomplete. Further, the undersigned swears, declares or affirms that no disclosures of ownership interests have been withheld and that the information provided herein is current to the best of its knowledge. The undersigned further swears, declares or affirms that it has not entered into an agreement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) to bid a fixed price, or any other type of agreement or arrangement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) in restraint of freedom of competition, and that it has not disclosed to any person or entity, excluding its employees, the terms of this proposal or the price named herein. Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided. Proposals not properly signed will be rejected. BUSINESS NAME: (Print or Type) BUSINESS ADDRESS: (Print or Type) If you are operating under an assumed name, provide County registration number hereinunder as provided in the Illinois Revised Statutes 1965 Chapter 96 Sec. 4 et seg. Registration Number: SIGNATURES AND ADDRESSES OF ALL MEMBERS OF THE PARTNERSHIP (If all General Partners do not sign, indicate authority of partner signatories by attaching copy of partnership agreement or other authorizing document): Partner Signature:

(Seal)

Subscribed and sworn to before me by each of the foregoing individuals this _____ day of _____, 20___.

Commission Expires:
9.4. PROPOSAL TO BE EXECUTED BY A SOLE PROPRIETOR
The undersigned, hereby acknowledges having received Specification No. 92221A containing a full set of Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, 1) General Conditions, 2) Special Conditions, 3) Contract Plans or Drawings (in applicable) 4) Detailed Specifications or Scope of Services, Evaluation/Selection Criteria and Submittal Requirements (In RFP/RFQ), 5) Proposal Pages, 6) Certifications and 7) Addenda Numbers (none unless indicated here matter) , and affirms that the sole proprietor shall be bound by all the terms and conditions contained in the Contract Documents, regardless of whether a complete set thereof is attached to this proposal, except only to the extent that the sole proprietor has taken express written exception thereto in the sections of this specification designated for that purpose.
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned: (1) warrants that he/she was authorized to submit an EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party on-line, (2) warrants that all certifications and statements contained in the EDS are true, accurate and complete as of the date the EDS was submitted on-line, and (3) further warrants that, as of the date of submission of this proposal or bid, there have been no changes in circumstances since the date that the EDS was submitted that would render any certification in the EDS false, inaccurate or incomplete.
Further, the undersigned swears, declares or affirms that no disclosures of ownership interests have been withheld and that the information provided herein is current to the best of its knowledge. The undersigned further swears, declares of affirms that it has not entered into an agreement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers) to bid affixed price, or any other type of agreement or arrangement among bidders (proposers) or prospective bidders (proposers in restraint of freedom of competition, and that it has not disclosed to any person or entity, excluding its employees, the terms of this proposal or the price named herein.
Proposals must be submitted with original signatures in the space provided. Proposals not properly signed will be rejected.
SIGNATURE OF PROPRIETOR:(Signature)
DOING BUSINESS AS:(Print or Type)
BUSINESS ADDRESS:(Print or Type)
If you are operating under an assumed name, provide County registration number hereinunder as provided in the Illinois Revised Statutes 1965 Chapter 96 Sec. 4 et seq. Registration Number:
State of
County of
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of, 20
Notary Public Signature:
(Seal)

9.5. PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE BY CITY

Chief Procurement Officer

Date

Contract No.:		
Specification No.:		
Total Amount (Value)	:	
Fund Chargeable:		
The undersigned, on b		CHICAGO, a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois, hereby accept roposal.
CITY OF CHICAGO		
Mayor	Date	
Comptroller	Date	